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EXPLANATORY NOTE

Signature Group Holdings, Inc. (“Signature,” formerly Fremont General Corporation (“Fremont”), or “Company”, “we,” “us” or
“our”) is filing this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 (the “Form
10-Q”) as part of its efforts to become current in its filing obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”).  With the filing of this Form 10-Q, the Company is now current in its Exchange Act
periodic reporting.

On June 18, 2008 (the “Petition Date”), Fremont  filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the
U.S. Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Central District of California, Santa
Ana Division (the “Bankruptcy Court”).  Prior to filing for bankruptcy protection, Fremont was not current in its annual
and quarterly periodic reporting requirements under Section 13 of the Exchange Act and did not file its Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 nor its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended March 31, 2008.  While under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court, Fremont did not file subsequent
Annual Reports on Form 10-K for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009, nor its Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended June 30, 2008, September 30, 2008, March 31, 2009, June 30, 2009,
September 30, 2009 and March 31, 2010 (collectively, the “Prior Delinquent Filings”).

Fremont emerged from bankruptcy on June 11, 2010 and our new management team and Board of Directors
immediately set upon a corporate initiative to return the Company to compliance with its Exchange Act reporting
obligations.  With a focus on preparing the Prior Delinquent Filings, the Company was not able to timely file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2010 as well as its Quarterly Reports for the quarterly periods ended June 30, 2010; September 30, 2010; March 31,
2011; June 30, 2011; and September 30, 2011.

On May 17, 2011, Signature filed a Comprehensive Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Comprehensive Form 10-K”)
that included, in one comprehensive filing, business and financial information for the fiscal years ended December 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007; selected, unaudited quarterly financial information of the Company for the fiscal years 2009 and
2008, which had not been previously filed with the SEC; as well as certain disclosures of subsequent events pertaining
to material events occurring up until the date of filing of the Comprehensive Form 10-K.

On July 5, 2011, Signature filed its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010
contemporaneously with the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31,
2010, June 30, 2010, and September 30, 2010, which had not been previously filed.

On September 29, 2011, Signature filed its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,
2011, which had not been previously filed.

On December 12, 2011, Signature filed its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,
2011, which had not been previously filed.

For a more complete understanding of the matters involving the Company, this Form 10-Q should be read together
with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.
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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

Signature Group Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
September 30,

2011
December 31,

2010
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 46,977 $ 70,424
Investment securities, available for sale 4,961 2,184
Loans receivable, net 8,216 1,967
Trade and other receivables, net 4,997 198
Inventories 8,577 -
Income taxes receivable 845 797
Intangible assets, net 8,617 -
Goodwill 18,381 -
Other assets 2,030 2,713
Assets of discontinued operations 45,503 57,261
TOTAL ASSETS $ 149,104 $ 135,544

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Lines of credit $ 4,680 $ -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 6,123 2,033
Contingent consideration 3,525 -
Long-term debt 52,000 39,000
Common stock warrant liability 2,224 5,700
Liabilities of discontinued operations 13,676 15,090
TOTAL LIABILITIES 82,228 61,823

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)

Shareholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 10,000 shares authorized; none issued or
outstanding - -
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 190,000,000 shares authorized;  117,431,856 and
112,104,768 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2011 and December 31,
2010, respectively 1,151 1,118
Additional paid-in capital 446,420 444,103
Accumulated deficit (380,633 ) (371,541 )
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (69 ) 41
Total shareholders' equity - Signature Group Holdings, Inc. 66,869 73,721
Noncontrolling interest 7 -
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 66,876 73,721
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 149,104 $ 135,544
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Signature Group Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenues:
Net sales $6,309 $- $7,149 $-
Interest 303 62 731 237
Total revenues 6,612 62 7,880 237

Expenses:
Cost of goods sold 3,772 - 4,293 -
Selling, general and administrative 1,517 876 4,146 3,202
Interest 952 892 2,746 3,189
Amortization of intangibles 649 - 752 -
Compensation 1,954 478 2,996 1,403
Professional fees 1,945 781 4,480 1,325
Total expenses 10,789 3,027 19,413 9,119

Other income (expense):
Change in fair value of common stock warrant liability 2,803 249 3,476 428
Gain on acquisition - - 281 -
Other income 1,412 - 1,412 86
Total other income (expense) 4,215 249 5,169 514

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before
reorganization items, net and income taxes 38 (2,716 ) (6,364 ) (8,368 )
Reorganization items, net 63 794 1,388 10,844
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (25 ) (3,510 ) (7,752 ) (19,212 )

Income tax benefit (2,650 ) - (2,762 ) -
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 2,625 (3,510 ) (4,990 ) (19,212 )
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (1,381 ) (6,026 ) (4,195 ) (12,302 )
Net earnings (loss) 1,244 (9,536 ) (9,185 ) (31,514 )

Loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (31 ) - (93 ) -
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. $1,275 $(9,536 ) $(9,092 ) $(31,514 )

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:
Basic and diluted:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations $0.02 $(0.03 ) $(0.04 ) $(0.21 )
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (0.01 ) (0.06 ) (0.04 ) (0.13 )
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. $0.01 $(0.09 ) $(0.08 ) $(0.34 )

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Signature Group Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
(Unaudited)

Preferred Stock Common Stock

(Dollars in thousands)

Number
of
Outstanding
SharesAmount

Number of
Outstanding
Shares Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Noncontrolling
Interest Total

Balance, December 31,
2010 - $ - 112,104,768 $ 1,118 $ 444,103 $ (371,541) $ 41 $ - $ 73,721
Net loss attributable to
Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. - - - - - (9,092 ) - - (9,092 )
Noncontrolling interest
from acquisition - - - - - - - 100 100
Loss attributable to
noncontrolling interest - - - - - - - (93 ) (93 )
Issuance of shares in
business combination - - 3,012,048 30 1,807 - - - 1,837
Proceeds from common
stock warrants - - - - 60 - - - 60
Issuance of restricted
stock, net of forfeitures - - 2,315,040 - - - - - -
Restricted stock vested - - - 3 (3 ) - - - -
Amortization of
share-based
compensation - - - - 453 - - - 453
Change in accumulated
other comprehensive
income - - - - - - (110 ) - (110 )
Balance, September 30,
2011 - $ - 117,431,856 $ 1,151 $ 446,420 $ (380,633) $ (69 ) $ 7 $ 66,876

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Signature Group Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $(9,185 ) $(31,514 )
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 4,195 12,302
Depreciation and amortization 606 85
Impairment of investment securities, available for sale - 55
Change in fair value of common stock warrant liability (3,476 ) (428 )
Provision for loan losses 2 38
Gain on extinguishment of debt - TOPrS - (3,530 )
Gains on sales and calls of investment securities, available for sale (71 ) -
Gain on sale of premises (1,388 ) -
Senior debt claims paid - (183,267 )
Amortization of share-based compensation 453 -
TOPrS claims paid - (45,000 )
Gain on acquisition (281 ) -
Interest income accretion (219 ) -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables 892 -
Inventories (373 ) -
Income taxes receivable (48 ) 94
Other assets (785 ) (315 )
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (1,846 ) 1,763
Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations (3,796 ) (70,608 )
Net cash used in operating activities (15,320 ) (320,325 )

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash (24,248 ) -
Purchases of loans receivable (4,250 ) -
Proceeds from investment securities, available for sale 2,000 -
Purchase of investment securities, available for sale (4,715 ) (2,154 )
Proceeds from sale of premises 3,759 -
Advances on loans receivable, net of repayments (1,782 ) 107
Purchases of property and equipment (7 ) -
Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations 9,494 7,491
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (19,749 ) 5,444

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on lines of credit, net of repayments 3,111 -
Borrowings from Term Loan 8,000 -
Proceeds from common stocks warrants 60 -
Issuance of shares and warrants - 10,060
Net cash provided by financing activities 11,171 10,060
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Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (23,898 ) (304,821 )
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 70,992 356,223
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $47,094 $51,402

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period - continuing operations $46,977 $50,950
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period - discontinued operations 117 452
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $47,094 $51,402
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for income taxes $490 $495
Cash paid for interest 2,688 24,158
Notes payable issued as partial settlement of TOPrS - 39,000
Common stock issued as partial settlement of TOPrS - 16,800
Transfers of loans held for sale to real estate owned 1,365 9,600
Transfer of other assets to premises, held for sale 2,348 -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Signature Group Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. $1,275 $(9,536 ) $(9,092 ) $(31,514 )
Other comprehensive loss:
Net change in unrealized losses during period:
Investment securities, available for sale (57 ) (6 ) (39 ) (6 )
Reclassification of realized amounts included in net earnings
(loss) (71 ) - (71 ) -
Other comprehensive loss (128 ) (6 ) (110 ) (6 )
Total comprehensive earnings (loss) $1,147 $(9,542 ) $(9,202 ) $(31,520 )

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Signature Group Holdings, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 — BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

Signature Group Holdings, Inc. (“Signature” or the “Company”), formerly known as Fremont General Corporation
(“Fremont”), is a diversified business and financial services enterprise that intends to generate strong, risk-adjusted
return on equity while protecting shareholder capital.  Signature presently operates in two primary business lines: (i)
Special Situation Lending and (ii) Strategic Acquisitions, through its subsidiaries, Signature Credit Partners, Inc.,
North American Breaker Co., Inc. (“NABCO”) and Cosmed, Inc. (“Cosmed”).  Additionally, Signature maintains and is
managing certain assets and liabilities related to Fremont’s former businesses, which include a portfolio of subprime
residential real estate mortgages, residential real estate, commercial real estate investments and litigation claims under
fidelity insurance bonds Fremont held (“Legacy Assets”).  The Legacy Assets are being managed to maximize cash
recoveries and value for Signature’s shareholders and are expected to be redeployed into its long term business strategy
over time.

NOTE 2 — FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Signature and its wholly-owned and
majority-owned subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule
8-03 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for
complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring
adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation, have been included. The Company evaluates subsequent
events through the date of filing with the SEC. Operating results for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2011 are not indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2011, particularly related
to acquisition activity during the period. These interim period consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2010, which are included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Annual Report”).

All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Certain previously reported amounts as of December 31, 2010 and for the periods ended September 30, 2010 have
been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that materially affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain of the accounts that require significant
judgment by management include valuation of loans held for sale, commercial real estate investments, real estate
owned, common stock warrant liability and contingent consideration; the allowance for loan losses on loans
receivable; litigation and repurchase reserves; impairment of long-lived assets; valuation allowance on deferred tax
assets; and fair values used in the allocation of purchase price in business combinations.

The Company’s significant accounting policies are disclosed in the Annual Report. There have been no material
changes to these accounting policies, except as described below.

Business Combinations
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Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method and accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the
acquired business are recorded at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price
over the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. The excess of the estimated fair
values of the net assets acquired over the purchase price is recorded as a gain on acquisition.  Any changes in the
estimated fair values of the net assets recorded for acquisitions prior to the finalization of more detailed analysis, but
not to exceed a reasonable period of time (generally one year from the date of acquisition), will change the amount of
the purchase price allocable to goodwill or gain on acquisition.
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The Company estimates and records the acquisition date estimated fair value of contingent consideration as part of
purchase price consideration. Additionally, each reporting period, the Company estimates changes in the fair value of
contingent consideration and any change in fair value is recognized in the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations.  An increase in the expected earn-out will result in a charge to operations in the quarter the anticipated fair
value of contingent consideration increases, while a decrease in the expected earn-out will result in a credit to
operations in the quarter the anticipated fair value of contingent consideration decreases.  The estimate of the fair
value of contingent consideration requires subjective assumptions to be made about future operating results, discount
rates, and probabilities of various projected operating result scenarios. Future revisions to these assumptions could
materially change the estimate of the fair value of contingent consideration and, therefore, materially affect the
Company’s future financial results.

Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.  The results of operations of acquired businesses are included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.

Goodwill and Intangibles
Identifiable intangible assets and liabilities with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which
represent the period over which the asset or liability is expected to contribute directly or indirectly to future cash
flows.  Intangible assets and liabilities with finite lives are reviewed for impairment whenever events and
circumstances indicate the carrying value of such asset or liability may not be recoverable. Goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment on an annual basis, or sooner if an indicator of impairment is
present.  Tests for impairment or recoverability require significant management judgment, and future events affecting
cash flows and market conditions could result in impairment losses.

Revenue Recognition
Revenues from product sales are recognized upon transfer of ownership, including passage of title to the customer and
transfer of the risk of loss related to those goods.  Revenues are reported on a net sales basis, which is computed by
deducting from gross sales amounts related to product returns, discounts and allowances.

Inventories
Inventories, consisting of manufactured goods and goods acquired for resale, are stated at the lower of cost or
market.  Inventory costs are determined on a first-in, first-out basis for consumer products and on a moving average
historical cost basis for electrical components.

Loans Receivable, Net
Loans receivable, net, consists of commercial real estate loans, commercial lines of credit and purchased
credit-impaired commercial term loans.  Loans receivable, net are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of
deferred fees and costs, if any, discounts or premiums and the allowance for loan losses.  The allowance for loan
losses is increased by provisions charged against operations and reduced by loan amounts charged off by the
Company. The allowance is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for probable and inherent losses on
loans receivable based on the Company’s evaluation of the portfolio. Future additions or reductions may be necessary
based on changes in the amounts and timing of expected future cash flows due to changes in collateral values
supporting loans receivable, general economic conditions and the financial condition of individual borrowers.  Loans
receivable, net, including purchased credit-impaired loans, are classified as held for investment based on the
Company’s intent and ability to hold such loans for the foreseeable future.

Purchased credit-impaired loans are loans acquired at a discount to face value where, at the acquisition date, based on
the credit quality of the borrower, the Company expects to collect less than the contractual amounts due under the
terms of the loan.  In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) Topic 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality, the excess of
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the cash flows expected to be collected over the initial investment is referred to as the accretable yield and is
recognized in interest income over the expected life of the loans using the effective yield method.  The excess of
contractual cash flows over cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition is referred to as the non-accretable
difference and is not recognized as an adjustment of yield, loss accrual, or valuation allowance. Subsequent increases
in cash flows expected to be collected are recognized prospectively through adjustment of the loan’s yield over its
remaining life. Subsequent decreases in cash flows expected to be collected are evaluated to determine whether the
loan is impaired.

Premises, Held for Sale
Assets are classified as held for sale when (i) management commits to a plan to sell which is actively being pursued;
(ii) it is available for immediate sale in its present condition and the sale is expected to be completed within one year;
and (iii) it is unlikely significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn. In isolated
instances, assets held for sale may exceed one year due to events or circumstances beyond the Company’s control.
Upon being classified as held for sale, the recoverability of the carrying value must be assessed. Assets held for sale
are reported at the lower of the carrying value or fair value less cost to sell (“net realizable value”), and the assets are no
longer depreciated or amortized. An impairment charge is recognized if the carrying value exceeds the net realizable
value.

7
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During the first quarter of 2011, the Company placed its former executive and administrative offices located in
Anaheim Hills, California for sale.  At the time the property was placed for sale, it was reclassified as premises held
for sale in the consolidated balance sheets.  No impairment was recognized at the time of transfer as the carrying value
of the associated building and land was less than the net realizable value.  During the third quarter of 2011, the
Company sold the property for net proceeds of $3.8 million, resulting in a gain of $1.4 million, included in other
income (expense) in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Recent Accounting Standards
In December 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2010-29 (“ASU 2010-29”) Business
Combinations (Topic 805) – Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma Information for Business Combinations. ASU
2010-29 requires a public entity to disclose pro forma information for business combinations that occurred in the
current reporting period. The disclosures include pro forma revenue and earnings of the combined entity for the
current reporting period as though the acquisition date for all business combinations that occurred during the year had
been as of the beginning of the annual reporting period. If comparative financial statements are presented, the pro
forma revenue and earnings of the combined entity for the comparable prior reporting period should be reported as
though the acquisition date for all business combinations that occurred during the current year had been as of the
beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period. The amendments in ASU 2010-29 are effective
prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2010.  The adoption of ASU 2010-29 on January 1, 2011 did not
have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements as it only affected disclosures.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-02 Receivables (Topic 310): A Creditor’s Determination of Whether a
Restructuring is a Troubled Debt Restructuring (“ASU 2011-02”). ASU 2011-02 provides creditors with additional
guidance in determining whether a restructuring constitutes a troubled debt restructuring by concluding that both the
following conditions exist (1) a creditor has granted a concession, and (2) the borrower is experiencing financial
difficulties. Additionally, ASU 2011-02 ends the FASB’s deferral of the additional disclosures about troubled debt
restructurings as required by ASU No. 2010-20 Receivables (Topic 310): Disclosures about the Credit Quality of
Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses. ASU 2011-02 is effective for the first interim or annual
period beginning on or after June 15, 2011, and is required to be applied retrospectively to the beginning of the annual
period of adoption. The adoption of ASU 2011-02 did not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05 Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of
Comprehensive Income (“ASU 2011-05”). ASU 2011-05 increases the prominence of other comprehensive income in
financial statements. Under ASU 2011-05, companies will have the option to present the components of net income
and comprehensive income in either one or two consecutive financial statements. ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option
to present other comprehensive income in the statement of changes in equity and is applied retrospectively. ASU
2011-05 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011. The
Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2011-05 to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing Goodwill
for Impairment (“ASU 2011-08”).  ASU 2011-08 simplifies how entities test goodwill for impairment by permitting
entities to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the
two-step goodwill impairment test. ASU 2011-08 is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted, including for annual and
interim goodwill impairment tests performed as of a date before September 15, 2011. The Company does not expect
the adoption of ASU 2011-08 to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are held in non-interest bearing deposit accounts in financial institutions and money market
funds.  As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, $2.9 million of cash and cash equivalents were restricted,
including $0.9 million related to amounts on deposit securing a letter of credit associated with insurance policies; and
$2.0 million related to amounts on deposit pending a decision on a legal case currently on appeal.  No other cash and
cash equivalents were restricted as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.  Included in cash and cash
equivalents as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 was $1.1 million and $2.5 million, respectively,
representing borrower remittances, held in  trust accounts maintained by the Company’s loan servicer.
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NOTE 4 — BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

NABCO
On July 29, 2011, Signature acquired 100% of the common stock of NABCO. NABCO, headquartered in Burbank,
California, is a nationwide quick-turn supplier of circuit breakers that maintains a significant depth of certified, new
product inventory used in various commercial, industrial and residential applications, including products that have
been discontinued by the manufacturer and are no longer broadly available. NABCO operates from five distribution
centers across the country to offer customers quick and reliable delivery nationwide in the repair and replacement
niche.  The total consideration paid at the closing of the transaction was $36.9 million, which included a cash payment
of approximately $23.4 million, the issuance of $5.0 million in subordinated, unsecured promissory notes (“Seller
Notes”), the issuance of Signature common stock with a fair value of $1.8 million, the assumption of $3.1 million in
liabilities and a $3.5 million estimated liability for contingent consideration. The former NABCO shareholders may
earn contingent consideration of up to $4.0 million, subject to the achievement of certain earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation, and amortization milestones for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.  At the time of
acquisition, the Company identified temporary differences related to the book basis and tax basis of the acquired
identifiable assets and assumed liabilities and recorded a deferred tax liability of $2.7 million.  The recognition of this
$2.7 million deferred tax liability resulted in a reduction in the valuation allowance against the Company’s deferred tax
assets.  In addition, the Company recorded acquisition related transaction costs of approximately $0.2 million.

9
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The following table presents the components of the purchase consideration and allocation of the purchase
consideration to the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

(Dollars in thousands)
Cash consideration $23,413
Signature Group Holdings, Inc. common stock 1,837
Seller Notes 5,000
Assumption of liabilities 3,149
Contingent consideration 3,478
Total purchase consideration $36,877

Purchase price allocation:
Assets:
Cash $165
Trade receivables 5,119
Inventories 6,800
Other assets 1,012
Identifiable intangible assets 8,150
Total assets 21,246

Liabilities:
Identifiable intangible liabilities 100
Deferred income tax liabilities 2,650
Total liabilities 2,750

Estimated fair value of net assets acquired 18,496
Goodwill 18,381
Total purchase consideration $36,877

The following table presents the estimated fair value of identifiable intangible assets and liabilities and related
estimated useful lives:

(Dollars in thousands)
Estimated
Fair Value

Useful Life
(Years)

Identifiable intangible assets and liabilities:
Customer relationships $7,300 7.5
Trade name 850 5.0
Lease intangibles (100 ) 3.0
Total $8,050

Total amortization of intangibles was $0.6 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and zero
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010.

10
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At September 30, 2011, aggregate future amortization of identifiable intangibles is estimated to be:

(Dollars in thousands)
2011 $857
2012 2,346
2013 1,588
2014 1,074
2015 758
Thereafter 857
Total $7,480

The operating results of NABCO are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements from the acquisition
date.  For the period from the acquisition date through September 30, 2011, NABCO’s total revenues and net earnings
were $6.1 million and $0.3 million, respectively.

The following selected unaudited pro forma results of operations of the Company for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, give effect to this business combination as though the transaction occurred on January
1, 2010:

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Total revenues:
As reported $6,612 $62 $7,880 $237
Pro forma 9,665 7,896 25,775 19,858

Net loss attributable to Signature Group Holdings, Inc.:
As reported $1,275 $(9,536 ) $(9,092 ) $(31,514 )
Pro forma 2,015 (8,586 ) (6,025 ) (27,481 )

Cosmed
On February 18, 2011, Cosmed, a newly-formed subsidiary of Signature, acquired certain assets and assumed certain
of the liabilities of Costru Company, LLC (“Costru”) for consideration totaling $2.7 million.  Cosmed, which does
business under the trade name CosmedicineTM, manufactures a line of skin care products for women, which is
available in retail stores across the country.  Signature currently owns 92% of the outstanding common stock of
Cosmed, with the remaining 8% held by the former owners of Costru.

Under purchase accounting, the total purchase price was allocated to Costru’s assets, identifiable intangible assets and
liabilities based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The estimated fair value of the noncontrolling
interest was determined using a market value approach considering the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, adjusted to account for the lack of control.

During the first quarter of 2011, the Company recorded acquisition-related costs of approximately $72 thousand,
which are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Company’s consolidated statement of
operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

11
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The following table presents the components of the purchase consideration and allocation of the purchase
consideration to the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

(Dollars in thousands)
Cash consideration $1,000
Assumption of liabilities 1,569
Noncontrolling interest 100
Total purchase consideration 2,669

Purchase price allocation:
Trade receivables 572
Inventories 1,350
Property and equipment 5
Identifiable intangible assets 1,225
Trade payables (90 )
Deferred tax liabilities (112 )
Net assets acquired 2,950

Gain on acquisition $281

The Company recorded a gain on acquisition of $0.3 million during the first quarter of 2011, based on the difference
between the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the total purchase consideration.  The gain
recognized at the time of the acquisition resulted from depressed market conditions within the consumer products
industry and Signature’s ability to negotiate a purchase price below the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired.

In addition to the initial cash consideration, the Company is obligated to make an additional earn-out payment of up to
$5.0 million, subject to a revenue target of $60.0 million in annualized revenues being achieved over any three month
period within 36 months of the acquisition date, or if the Company sells Cosmed for at least $60.0 million during a
specified time period, not to exceed 39 months from the acquisition date. At both the acquisition date and at
September 30, 2011, management determined the fair value of this contingent consideration to be zero, based upon
current and projected revenues over the requisite earn-out period.

The following table presents the estimated fair value of identifiable intangible assets and related estimated useful
lives:

(Dollars in thousands)
Estimated
Fair Value

Useful Life
(Years)

Identifiable intangible assets:
Product formulas $800 10.0
Trademarks 190 10.0
Customer lists 125 3.0
Domain names 100 3.0
Non-compete agreements 10 10.0
Identifiable intangible assets $1,225

Total amortization of intangible assets was $78 thousand and zero for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively.  Total amortization of intangible assets was $0.2 million and zero for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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At September 30, 2011, aggregate future amortization of identifiable intangible assets is estimated to be:

(Dollars in thousands)
2011 $78
2012 193
2013 164
2014 109
2015 101
Thereafter 399
Total $1,044

The operating results of Cosmed are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements from the acquisition
date.  For the period from the acquisition date through September 30, 2011, Cosmed’s total revenues and net loss were
$1.1 million and $0.9 million, respectively.

The following selected unaudited pro forma results of operations of the Company for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, give effect to this business combination as though the transaction occurred on January
1, 2010:

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Total revenues:
As reported $6,612 $62 $7,880 $237
Pro forma 6,612 715 8,428 2,387
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Signature Group
Holdings, Inc.:
As reported $1,275 $(9,536 ) $(9,092 ) $(31,514 )
Pro forma 1,312 (9,773 ) (8,917 ) (32,059 )

NOTE 5 — INVESTMENT SECURITIES, AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The following table presents the components of investment securities, available for sale as of:

(Dollars in thousands)

September
30,
2011

December
31,
2010

Corporate bonds $4,657 $1,880
Estate bonds 304 304
Investment securities, available for sale $4,961 $2,184

At September 30, 2011, corporate bonds included one security with a $3.0 million par value, a coupon of 11.25% per
annum and a maturity of March 2015, purchased for $2.7 million.  Additionally, corporate bonds include two
securities with an aggregate par value of $2.7 million, coupons of 13.00% per annum and  maturity dates of October
2014, purchased for $2.0 million.

At December 31, 2010, corporate bonds included one security with a principal balance of $2.0 million and an interest
rate of 10.00% per annum, which matures in March 2012.  This security was called during the three months ended
September 30, 2011, resulting in a gain of $71 thousand.  Gains and losses on investment securities, available for sale
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are determined on a specific identification method.

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, estate bonds included $3.3 million of matured bonds of an institution
seized by the FDIC, purchased for $0.4 million.  Holders of the estate bonds, which include both senior and
subordinate debentures, are currently engaged in litigation over the distribution of the remaining funds of the estate.
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The amortized cost and gross unrealized holding gains for investment securities, available for sale, consisted of the
following as of:

(Dollars in thousands)
September 30,

2011
December 31,

2010
Amortized cost $ 5,030 $ 2,143
Gross unrealized holding (losses) gains (69 ) 41
Estimated fair value $ 4,961 $ 2,184

NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET

Loans receivable, net consisted of the following as of:

(Dollars in thousands)
September 30,

2011
December 31,

2010
Commercial real estate loans:
Unpaid principal balance $ 1,944 $ 2,015
Allowance for loan losses (50 ) (48 )
Total commercial real estate loans 1,894 1,967

Commercial loans:
Revolving lines of credit 5,353 -
Purchased credit-impaired term loan 969 -
Total commercial loans 6,322 -
Loans receivable, net $ 8,216 $ 1,967

Commercial real estate loans consist of a participation interest in a pool of adjustable rate multi-family loans.

On February 22, 2011, Signature Credit Partners, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Signature, purchased $8.4
million in senior secured debt of a manufacturing company that specializes in retail store fixtures and merchandise
displays for $4.3 million.  At the time of acquisition, the estimated fair value of the performing revolving line of credit
and credit-impaired term loan totaled $3.2 million and $1.1 million, respectively.  For the period from acquisition
through September 30, 2011, advances on the revolving line of credit, net of repayments totaled $1.9 million.  

The following table presents a summary of credit-impaired commercial term loans purchased during the nine months
ended September 30, 2011:

(Dollars in thousands)
Contractually required payments receivable $5,449
Less: Non-accretable difference (1,355 )
Cash flows expected to be collected 4,094
Less: accretable yield (2,994 )
Fair value of loans acquired $1,100
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The following table shows activity for the accretable yield on purchased credit-impaired commercial term loans for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011:

(Dollars in thousands)

Three Months
Ended
September 30, 2011

Nine Months
Ended
September 30, 2011

Accretable yield, beginning of period $ 3,206 $ -
Purchases of credit-impaired loans - 2,994
Accretion (102 ) (219 )
Reclassifications (1) - 329
Accretable yield, end of period $ 3,104 $ 3,104

(1)During the second quarter of 2011, $0.3 million was reclassified to accretable yield from non-accretable
difference based on changes in estimated future cash flows.

NOTE 7 — INVENTORIES

Inventories within the Company’s Consumer Products segment consist of a line of skin care products for women,
which is available in retail stores across the country.  Inventories within the Company’s Distribution segment consist of
electrical components, primarily new electrical circuit breakers for use in commercial, industrial and residential
applications.  The following table presents the composition of the Company’s inventories as of:

(Dollars in thousands)
September 30,

2011
Raw materials $ 743
Work in progress 106
Finished goods 7,728
Total $ 8,577

At September 30, 2011, all inventories are pledged as collateral to secure outstanding balances on NABCO’s and
Cosmed’s lines of credit. There were no inventories at December 31, 2010.

NOTE 8 — DEBT

The following table presents the Company’s debt as of:

(Dollars in thousands)
September 30,

2011
December 31,

2010
Lines of credit $ 4,680 $ -

Notes payable $ 39,000 $ 39,000
Term loan 8,000 -
Seller notes 5,000 -
Long-term debt $ 52,000 $ 39,000

Lines of credit
On September 30, 2011, NABCO completed a $16.0 million debt financing transaction (the “NABCO Financing”) with
a third-party lender (the “Lender”). The NABCO Financing was completed pursuant to the terms of two business loan
agreements (the “Loan Agreements”), the first provides for an $8.0 million revolving, asset-based loan (the “Revolving
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Loan”). The second provides for an $8.0 million term loan (the “Term Loan”) (see Term loan below). As a result of the
NABCO Financing, NABCO repaid the Company $12.5 million that was previously used to acquire NABCO on July
29, 2011. The Company is not a borrower, obligor nor a guarantor under the Loan Agreements. The Loan Agreements
require NABCO to maintain compliance with certain financial covenants. The $8.0 million Revolving Loan matures
in September 2014 and is subject to a borrowing base.  The borrowing base is calculated by a formula, which is based
on 80% of NABCO’s eligible accounts receivable plus 60% of NABCO’s eligible inventory, not to exceed $5.0 million,
less reserves as further described in the Loan Agreements.  The Revolving Loan has a variable interest rate based upon
the Lender’s Base Rate.  In the event of default, the interest rate will increase by 5.00% per annum.  The Revolving
Loan is secured by all of NABCO’s assets.
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In February 2011, Cosmed entered into a $3.0 million line of credit with a third-party lender to fund its
operations.  The line of credit is secured by all of Cosmed’s assets.  Advances are based on a percentage of eligible
trade receivables and inventory.  The line of credit is due on demand and bears interest at the prime rate plus 2.25%
with a floor rate of 6.00% per annum.  Interest is due monthly in arrears on the first day of the month.  At September
30, 2011, $64 thousand was outstanding on the line of credit. Under the terms of the line of credit, Cosmed is required
to maintain certain financial covenants.  At September 30, 2011, Cosmed was not in compliance with certain financial
covenants and further advances on the line of credit are not available.  Signature has provided working capital
financing to Cosmed from the time advances were no longer available under the line of credit.

Total interest expense on lines of credit was $17 thousand and zero for the three months ended September 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively.  Total interest expense on lines of credit was $55 thousand and zero for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Notes payable
In June and July 2010, as partial settlement of the Company’s then outstanding 9.0% Trust Originated Preferred
Securities (the “TOPrS”) bankruptcy claims, the former holders of the TOPrS received $45 million in cash, subject to
charging liens of the indenture trustee, 21 million shares of Signature’s common stock, and were issued an aggregate of
$39 million in notes payable, due December 2016 (“Notes Payable”) and bearing interest at a rate of 9.0% per annum.
The Notes Payable were issued on July 16, 2010.

The indenture, dated June 11, 2010 (the “Notes Payable Indenture”), contains covenants that limit the ability of the
Company and certain subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends or make
distributions, repurchase equity securities, or make guarantee payments on the foregoing; (ii) make payments on debt
securities that rank pari passu or junior to the Notes Payable; (iii) effect a change of control of the Company; or (iv)
enter into transactions with insiders.

Interest expense on Notes Payable was $0.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010. Interest
expense on Notes Payable was $2.6 million and $1.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Term loan
The $8.0 million Term Loan matures in September 2016 and is subject to annual principal payments of 10% of the
original principal amount of the Term Loan in year 1, 15% of the original principal amount of the Term Loan in each
of years 2 and 3, 20% of the original principal amount of the Term Loan in each of years 4 and 5, with a balloon
payment of any remaining principal balance due at maturity.  The Term Loan has a variable interest rate based upon
the Lender’s Base Rate plus 1.00% per annum.  In the event of default, the interest rate will increase by 5.00% per
annum.  At September 30, 2011, the interest rate on the Term Loan was 5.00%.  The Term Loan is secured by all of
NABCO’s assets.

Seller notes
In connection with the NABCO Acquisition, NABCO issued $5.0 million in notes (the “Seller Notes”) to the former
NABCO shareholders as part of the total consideration paid.  The Seller Notes mature on January 29, 2016 and are
subject to scheduled quarterly principal payments of $0.2 million beginning December 2011.  In addition to the
scheduled quarterly principal payments, additional principal payments will be made subject to NABCO exceeding
certain annual earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) targets beginning with the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2011.  If NABCO exceeds the EBITDA targets, the additional principal payments are
due quarterly beginning in the first quarter of the subsequent year.  The Seller Notes bear interest at 6.00% per annum
and are paid quarterly beginning in the fourth quarter of 2011.
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Total interest expense on the Seller Notes was $53 thousand for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011.
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NOTE 9 — COMMON STOCK WARRANT LIABILITY

In connection with the Company’s emergence from bankruptcy proceedings on June 11, 2010 (the “Effective Date”),
Signature issued warrants (the “Warrants”) to purchase an aggregate of 15 million shares of the Company’s common
stock to Signature Group Holdings, LLC, an investment management company owned by Craig Noell and Kyle Ross;
Kenneth Grossman; and NWRA Capital Partners LLC (collectively, the “Warrant Investors”) for an aggregate cash
purchase price of $300,000.  The Warrants have a term of 10 years and an originial exercise price of $1.03 per
share.  The Warrants vest 20% on the Effective Date and 20% in annual installments until the Warrants are fully
vested on the fourth anniversary of the Effective Date. The $300,000 purchase price for the Warrants is payable as the
Warrants vest.  Accordingly, the Warrant Investors paid an aggregate amount of $60,000 on the Effective Date and
will pay $60,000 in the aggregate on each subsequent vesting installment. The Warrants were issued to the Warrant
Investors without registration in reliance on the exemption set forth in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended.  The Warrants include customary terms that provide for certain adjustments of the exercise price and the
number of shares of common stock to be issued upon exercise of the Warrants in the event of stock splits, stock
dividends, pro rata distributions and certain fundamental transactions.  In addition, the Warrants are also subject to “full
ratchet” anti-dilution protection. The anti-dilution protection provisions of the Warrants provide that certain issuances
of new shares of common stock during the term of the Warrants at prices below the current exercise price of the
Warrants automatically reduce the exercise price to the lowest per share purchase price of any shares of common stock
issued.

As part of the consideration paid for the NABCO acquisition (refer to Note 4 – Business Combinations), the Company
issued 3,012,048 shares of Signature common stock to the former owners of NABCO, which triggered the
anti-dilution protection provisions of the Warrants. This resulted in a reduction in the Warrant exercise price from
$0.69 to $0.66 per share. However, the holders of approximately 79% of the Warrants, including Signature Group
Holdings, LLC and Kenneth Grossman, waived the anti-dilution protection provisions related to the shares issued as
part of the NABCO transaction as it applied to them.

The Company estimates the fair value of the common stock warrant liability each period utilizing a lattice option
pricing model, which includes various assumptions, including expected term, volatility, risk-free interest rate, share
issuance frequency and exercise price.  For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, the change in fair
value of common stock warrant liability was $2.8 million and $3.5 million, respectively.  The changes in fair value are
primarily attributable to decreases in the underlying market price of the Company’s common stock and reductions in
the remaining contractual term of the Warrants. Partially offsetting the decrease in estimated fair value of the common
stock warrant liability was a decrease in exercise price associated with anti-dilution protection provisions.

NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes are computed using the liability method in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic
740, Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes represent the tax effect of differences between the
financial and income tax bases of assets and liabilities.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had estimated federal and California state net operating loss (“NOL”)
carryforwards of approximately $889.1 million and $1.0 billion, respectively, which expire at various dates between
2016 and 2030.  The Company’s federal NOLs have a 20-year life and begin to expire in 2027.   The Company’s state
NOLs have either a 10-year or 20-year life and begin to expire in 2016.  The Company maintained a full valuation
allowance against its deferred tax assets at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, as it believed, at such time, it
was more likely than not that the deferred tax assets would not be realized.
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Income tax benefit, within continuing operations was $2.7 million and zero for the three months ended September 30,
2011 and 2010, respectively.  Income tax benefit, within continuing operations was $2.8 million and zero for the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  The income tax benefit is primarily attributable to a
decrease in the Company’s valuation allowance on deferred tax assets related to recognizing deferred tax liabilities in
connection with the NABCO Acquisition and the acquisition of assets and assumption of certain liabilities of Costru.

Income tax expense, within discontinued operations, was $0.6 million and zero for the three months ended September
30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Income tax expense, within discontinued operations, was $1.0 million and $0.2
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Income tax expense during the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2011 is attributable to increases in taxable income associated with previous
deferred tax liabilities that have generated current taxable income, primarily in California. Based on California’s
temporary suspension of the use of net operating loss carryforwards, the current taxable income results in a current
period obligation.  Additionally, for federal purposes, the Company is subject to alternative minimum taxes, which
limit the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards to 90% of taxable income.
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NOTE 11 — MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

On July 28, 2011, the Company terminated the Interim Investment Management Agreement dated June 11, 2010 (the
“Interim Management Agreement”), by and between the Company and Signature Capital Advisers, LLC (“SCA”),
effective July 31, 2011 (the “Termination Date”). Pursuant to the terms of the Interim Management Agreement, the
Board was permitted to terminate the agreement at any time, without the payment of any penalty, upon 60 days’
written notice to SCA (the “Advance Notice Requirement”). In connection with the termination of the Interim
Management Agreement, SCA and the Company agreed that: (i) the Advance Notice Requirement shall be waived;
(ii) the Company’s obligation to pay the management fee pursuant to the Interim Management Agreement terminated
as of the Termination Date; (iii) the management fee payable to SCA for services provided in July 2011 will exclude
the monthly compensation payments for Craig Noell, Kenneth Grossman, Kyle Ross and Thomas Donatelli
(collectively, the “SCA Executives”), each of whom have entered into employment agreements with the Company; and
(iv) the terms and conditions of the Interim Management Agreement shall be terminated and of no further force or
effect as of the Termination Date, except for the limitation of liability and indemnification provision of the Interim
Management Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect.

Pursuant to the Interim Management Agreement, the Company contracted with SCA to provide general business
management for its operations through December 31, 2010 with annual renewals if a revised management agreement
had not yet been entered into between the parties. The Interim Management Agreement had been renewed by the
Board through December 31, 2011. During the second quarter of 2011, the Board undertook an evaluation of its
external management structure with SCA and explored alternative management structures that were available to the
Company. At the conclusion of the evaluation, the Company terminated the Interim Management Agreement and
adopted an internal management structure, which included the Company entering into employment agreements with
the SCA Executives.  The terms of such employment agreements were based on analysis and recommendations from a
nationally recognized executive compensation consulting firm.   In addition, all other SCA employees became
employees of the Company as of August 1, 2011.

NOTE 12 — SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share-based compensation awards, which include awards of restricted stock and stock options, are amortized at their
grant date fair value.  Compensation expense for share-based awards is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service period.  Nonvested restricted stock awards are not recorded as part of common stock in the
consolidated balance sheets until they are earned.  However, since the shares are issued when granted, the shares are
included as part of the total number of shares issued and outstanding in the parenthetical disclosure on the face of the
consolidated balance sheets.

The fair value of awards of restricted stock is determined based on the closing trade price of the Company’s shares on
the grant date.  The fair value of stock options containing only service conditions is estimated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model.  The fair value of stock options containing both service and market conditions is estimated using
a trinomial lattice pricing model.

On April 21, 2011, each of three newly appointed independent members of the Board of Directors was issued 75,640
restricted shares of common stock. These restricted shares vest on December 31, 2011, subject to immediate vesting in
the event of a change in control. On the grant date, the total number of restricted shares of common stock issued was
226,920, with an aggregate fair value of $0.2 million. Unvested restricted shares issued to former Board members who
resigned during 2011 have been forfeited.

On August 8, 2011 (“Award Date”), the Company granted an aggregate of 8,816,000 stock options and 1,779,903 shares
of restricted stock to executives under the Signature Group Holdings, Inc. 2006 Performance Incentive Plan (the
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“Incentive Plan”).  The stock options were granted with an exercise price equal to the average of the closing prices of the
Company’s common stock for the three-business-day period ending on the business day immediately before the Award
Date.  Subject to acceleration of vesting and to such other terms and conditions as are set forth in the respective award
agreements, the stock options vest as follows: (i) twenty-five percent (25%) on the six (6) month anniversary of the
Award Date; (ii) twenty-five percent (25%) on the eighteen (18) month anniversary of the Award Date; (iii)
twenty-five percent (25%) on the thirty (30) month anniversary of the Award Date; and (iv) twenty-five percent (25%)
on July 1, 2015, with this final tranche subject to the Company’s common stock achieving certain trading prices as of
such date. On December 6, 2011, the Company and Kenneth S. Grossman modified the vesting schedule of Mr.
Grossman's stock option agreement to extend the vesting of the first twenty-five percent (25%) of stock options to
coincide with the vesting of the second twenty-five percent (25%) of stock options on the eighteen (18) month
anniversary of the Award Date. This modification to the vesting schedule results in additional compensation cost of
approximately $6 thousand over the remaining requisite service period. Subject to acceleration of vesting and to such
other terms and conditions as are set forth in the respective award agreements, the shares of restricted stock vest on
December 31, 2013.  The aggregate grant-date fair value of the stock options and restricted stock was $1.7 million and
$1.0 million, respectively.
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For the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, compensation expense for share-based awards was $0.3
million and zero, respectively.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, compensation expense for
share-based awards was $0.5 million and zero, respectively.  At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
unrecognized compensation expense for share-based awards was $2.6 million and zero, respectively.

The following table presents the changes in nonvested shares of restricted stock during the nine months ended
September 30, 2011:

Number
of

Shares

Weighted Average
Grant Date
Fair Value
Per Share

Nonvested shares, December 31, 2010 316,267 $ 0.83
Granted 2,725,996 0.62
Vested (316,267 ) (0.83 )
Forfeited (410,956 ) (0.73 )
Nonvested shares, September 30, 2011 2,315,040 $ 0.60

The following table presents the changes in nonvested stock options during the nine months ended September 30,
2011:

Number
of

Shares

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value
Per Share

Nonvested stock options, December 31, 2010 - $ -
Granted 8,816,000 0.19
Vested - -
Forfeited - -
Nonvested stock options, September 30, 2011 8,816,000 $ 0.19

There were no vested stock options outstanding at September 30, 2011.

In connection with the share-based awards granted to the SCA Executives, the Board, on July 28, 2011, also approved
an amendment to the Incentive Plan that increased the authorized aggregate number of shares of the Company’s
common stock that may be issued pursuant to the Incentive Plan to 25,000,000 shares.

On October 27, 2011, the Board amended the Incentive Plan to remove the annual limitation on equity awards to
participants under the Incentive Plan, which was formerly 250,000 shares per individual, per calendar year.

NOTE 13 — EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net earnings (loss) attributable to Signature Group Holdings,
Inc. by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the reporting period.  Diluted earnings (loss)
per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were
exercised or converted into common stock.  For the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share, the basic weighted
average number of shares is increased by the dilutive effect of stock options, restricted share awards and the Warrants
determined using the treasury stock method.

Edgar Filing: SIGNATURE GROUP HOLDINGS, INC. - Form 10-Q

35



19

Edgar Filing: SIGNATURE GROUP HOLDINGS, INC. - Form 10-Q

36



Table of Contents

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations $2,625 $(3,510 ) $(4,990 ) $(19,212 )
Loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (31 ) - (93 ) -
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
attributable to Signature Group Holdings, Inc. 2,656 (3,510 ) (4,897 ) (19,212 )
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes (1,381 ) (6,026 ) (4,195 ) (12,302 )
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. $1,275 $(9,536 ) $(9,092 ) $(31,514 )

Weighted-average basic shares outstanding 114,200,106 111,788,501 112,810,889 92,032,091
Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding 114,415,778 111,788,501 112,810,889 92,032,091

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations $0.02 $(0.03 ) $(0.04 ) $(0.21 )
Discontinued operations (0.01 ) (0.06 ) (0.04 ) (0.13 )
Basic earnings (loss) per share $0.01 $(0.09 ) $(0.08 ) $(0.34 )

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations $0.02 $(0.03 ) $(0.04 ) $(0.21 )
Discontinued operations (0.01 ) (0.06 ) (0.04 ) (0.13 )
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $0.01 $(0.09 ) $(0.08 ) $(0.34 )

Diluted earnings (loss) per share for the three months ended September 30, 2011, excludes 28,024 incremental shares
related to restricted stock; 2,198,524 incremental shares related to stock options and 4,314,093 incremental shares
related to the Warrants as they would be antidilutive. Diluted earnings (loss) per share for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011, excludes 1,024 incremental shares related to restricted stock; 277,526 incremental shares related
to stock options and 712,244 incremental shares related to the Warrants as they would be antidilutive.

Restricted stock, stock options and the Warrants are anti-dilutive and excluded from the computation of diluted
earnings per share if the assumed proceeds upon exercise or vest are greater than the cost to reacquire the same
number of shares at the average market price during the period. The dilutive impact of these securities could be
included in future computations of diluted earnings per share if the market price of the Company’s common stock
increases.

NOTE 14 — FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be received for an asset or
paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. FASB ASC Topic 820 also establishes a
fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to
measure fair value:

• Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
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•Level 2 – Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted
prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market
data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

•Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair
value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is
determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments
for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.
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Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following table presents, for each of the levels within the fair value hierarchy, the Company’s assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

(Dollars in thousands)

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3) Total Fair Value

As of September 30, 2011:
Assets:
Investment securities, available for sale $ 4,657 $ 304 $ - $ 4,961

Liabilities:
Contingent consideration $ - $ - $ 3,525 $ 3,525
Common stock warrant liability - - 2,224 2,224
Total $ - $ - $ 5,749 $ 5,749

As of December 31, 2010:
Assets:
Investment securities, available for sale $ 1,880 $ 304 $ - $ 2,184

Liabilities:
Common stock warrant liability $ - $ - $ 5,700 $ 5,700

The following table presents the reconciliation for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

( D o l l a r s  i n
thousands)

Beginning
Balance

Amounts
Realized in
Earnings

Transfers
In/Out of
Level 3 Purchases Issuances Settlements

Ending
Balance

Three months
ended September
30, 2011:
Contingent
consideration $- $47 $- $- $3,478 $- $3,525
Common stock
warrant liability 5,027 (2,803 ) - - - - 2,224
Total $5,027 $(2,756 ) $- $- $3,478 $- $5,749

Three months
ended September
30, 2010:
Common stock
warrant liability $4,926 $(249 ) $- $- $- $- $4,677

Nine months
ended September
30, 2011:
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Contingent
consideration $- $47 $- $- $3,478 $- $3,525
Common stock
warrant liability 5,700 (3,476 ) - - - - 2,224
Total $5,700 $(3,429 ) $- $- $3,478 $- $5,749

Nine months
ended September
30, 2010:
Common stock
warrant liability $- $(428 ) $- $- $5,105 $- $4,677
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Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

From time to time, the Company is required to measure certain assets and liabilities at estimated fair value.  These fair
value measurements typically result from the application of specific accounting guidance under GAAP and are
considered nonrecurring fair value measurements under FASB ASC Topic 820-10.  The following table presents
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured using nonrecurring fair value measurements:

(Dollars in thousands)

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3) Total Fair Value

As of September 30, 2011:
Assets:
Real estate owned, net (1) $ - $ - $ 1,313 $ 1,313
Loans held for sale, net - - 36,900 36,900
Total $ - $ - $ 38,213 $ 38,213

As of December 31, 2010:
Assets:
Real estate owned, net (1) $ - $ - $ 2,571 $ 2,571
Loans held for sale, net - - 38,938 38,938
Total $ - $ - $ 41,509 $ 41,509

(1)Amounts represent the Company’s real estate owned (“REO”) that resulted in gains (losses) recorded on a
non-recurring basis during the period.

The following table summarizes the total gains (losses) on assets and liabilities measured using estimated fair values
on a nonrecurring basis for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Real estate owned, net $(267 ) $(737 ) $(543 ) $(1,578 )
Loans held for sale, net 391 (2,086 ) 1,036 2,143
Commercial real estate investments - - (445 ) -
Discontinued lease liability - (14 ) - (47 )
Total $124 $(2,837 ) $48 $518
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FASB ASC Topic 825, Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of the estimated fair value of certain financial
instruments and the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate such fair values. The following table
presents the carrying values and fair value estimates of financial instruments as of:

September 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

(Dollars in thousands) Carrying Amount
Estimated
Fair ValueCarrying Amount

Estimated
Fair Value

ASSETS
Continuing Operations:
Cash and cash equivalents $46,977 $46,977 $70,424 $70,424
Investment securities, available for sale 4,961 4,961 2,184 2,184
Loans receivable, net 8,216 8,216 1,967 1,967
Discontinued Operations:
Cash and cash equivalents 117 117 568 568
FHLB stock 2,051 2,051 2,051 2,051
Loans held for sale, net 36,900 36,900 38,938 38,938
Commercial real estate investments 327 327 5,484 5,484
Note receivable 1,806 1,806 1,639 1,639

LIABILITIES
Continuing Operations:
Lines of credit $4,680 $4,680 $- $-
Contingent consideration 3,525 3,525 - -
Long-term debt 52,000 46,150 39,000 35,685
Common stock warrant liability 2,224 2,224 5,700 5,700

The Company used the following methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are recorded at historical cost. The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value as
these instruments have short-term maturities and market interest rates.

Investment securities, available for sale
Fair values for investment securities, available for sale are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments with similar
credit, maturity, and interest rate characteristics.

Loans receivable, net
Loans receivable, net, consists of commercial real estate loans, commercial lines of credit and purchased
credit-impaired commercial term loans.  The fair value of commercial real estate loans and commercial lines of credit
considers estimated credit losses and variable interest rates, which approximate market interest rates.  The fair value of
purchased credit-impaired commercial term loans is based on a discounted cash flow analysis utilizing assumptions,
including interest rates that approximate market rates and the amount and timing of expected cash flows and other
recoveries.

FHLB stock
Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) stock is recorded at cost. Fremont’s former primary operating subsidiary, Fremont
Investment & Loan (“FIL”), was previously a member of the FHLB of San Francisco. Ownership of these securities is
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restricted to member banks and purchases and sales of these securities are at par value with the issuer. The fair value
of investments in FHLB stock is equal to the carrying amount.

Loans held for sale, net
The fair value of loans held for sale, net is based on several factors, including current bids and market indications for
similar assets, recent sales, discounted cash flow analyses, estimated values of underlying collateral and actual loss
severity experience in portfolios backed by similar assets.

Commercial real estate investments
The fair value of commercial real estate investments is based on various factors including current bids and market
indications of similar assets, recent sales and discounted cash flow analyses.

23

Edgar Filing: SIGNATURE GROUP HOLDINGS, INC. - Form 10-Q

43



Table of Contents

Note receivable
The note receivable is a short-term note received in connection with the sale of commercial real estate
investments.  The fair value of the note receivable considers the short-term nature of the instrument, as well as the
estimated credit worthiness of the counterparty.

Lines of credit
Lines of credit are short-term in nature and carrying value is considered to approximate fair value.

Contingent consideration
The fair value of contingent consideration is based on the Company’s expectation of future operating results and
includes assumptions related to discount rates, and probabilities of various projected operating result scenarios.

Long-term debt
Long-term debt includes Notes Payable, Term Loan and Seller Notes.  The fair value of Notes Payable is based on
quoted market prices.  The Term Loan and Seller Notes were newly issued during the quarter ended September 30,
2011 at market terms.

Common stock warrant liability
The fair value of the common stock warrant liability is based on a lattice option pricing model that utilizes various
assumptions, including expected term, volatility, risk-free interest rate, share issuance frequency and exercise price.

NOTE 15 — OPERATIONS BY REPORTABLE SEGMENT

The Company has four primary operating segments, which include Special Situation Lending, Strategic Acquisitions –
Distribution, Strategic Acquisitions – Consumer Products and Discontinued Operations.  Results of operations and
other financial measures that are not included in the Company’s four primary operating segments are included in
Corporate and Other.  The following tables present the operating results and other key financial measures for the
Company’s operating segments as of and for the periods indicated.

Continuing Operations
Strategic

Acquisitions

(Dollars in
thousands)

Special
Situation
Lending Distribution

Consumer
Products

Corporate
and
Other Eliminations Total

Discontinued
Operations Total

Three months ended
September 30, 2011:
Revenues $548 $6,082 $ 227 $ 49 $ (294 ) $6,612 $ 1,741 $8,353
Expenses 2 5,239 617 5,225 (294 ) 10,789 2,501 13,290
Other income
(expense) 71 (47 ) - 4,191 - 4,215 - 4,215
Earnings (loss)
before reorganization
items, net and
income taxes 617 796 (390 ) (985 ) - 38 (760 ) (722 )
Reorganization
items, net - - - 63 - 63 - 63
Earnings (loss)
before income taxes

617 796 (390 ) (1,048 ) - (25 ) (760 ) (785 )
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and loss attributable
to noncontrolling
interest
Income tax expense
(benefit) 54 317 - (3,021 ) - (2,650 ) 621 (2,029 )
Net earnings (loss) 563 479 (390 ) 1,973 - 2,625 (1,381 ) 1,244
Loss attributable to
noncontrolling
interest - - (31 ) - - (31 ) - (31 )
Net earnings (loss)
attributable to
Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. $563 $479 $ (359 ) $ 1,973 $ - $2,656 $ (1,381 ) $1,275

Continuing Operations
Strategic

Acquisitions

(Dollars in
thousands)

Special
Situation
Lending Distribution

Consumer
Products

Corporate
and
Other Eliminations Total

Discontinued
Operations Total

Three months ended
September 30, 2010:
Revenues $53 $- $ - $ 9 $ - $62 $ (2,123 ) $(2,061 )
Expenses - - - 3,027 - 3,027 3,903 6,930
Other income
(expense) - - - 249 - 249 - 249
Earnings (loss) before
reorganization items,
net and income taxes 53 - - (2,769 ) - (2,716 ) (6,026 ) (8,742 )
Reorganization items,
net - - - 794 - 794 - 794
Earnings (loss) before
income taxes 53 - - (3,563 ) - (3,510 ) (6,026 ) (9,536 )
Income tax expense - - - - - - - -
Net earnings (loss) $53 $- $ - $ (3,563 ) $ - $(3,510 ) $ (6,026 ) $(9,536 )
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Continuing Operations

(Dollars in
thousands)

Special
Situation
Lending Distribution

Consumer
Products

Corporate
and Other Eliminations Total

Discontinued
Operations Total

Nine months
ended September
30, 2011:
Revenues $ 953 $ 6,082 $ 1,067 $ 117 $ (339 ) $ 7,880 $ 4,923 $ 12,803
Expenses 2 5,239 2,224 12,287 (339 ) 19,413 8,070 27,483
Other income
(expense) 71 (47 ) 281 4,864 - 5,169 - 5,169
Earnings (loss)
before
reorganization
items, net and
income taxes 1,022 796 (876 ) (7,306 ) - (6,364 ) (3,147 ) (9,511 )
Reorganization
items, net - - - 1,388 - 1,388 - 1,388
Earnings (loss)
before income
taxes and loss
attributable to
noncontrolling
interest 1,022 796 (876 ) (8,694 ) - (7,752 ) (3,147 ) (10,899 )
Income tax
expense (benefit) 60 317 - (3,139 ) - (2,762 ) 1,048 (1,714 )
Net earnings
(loss) 962 479 (876 ) (5,555 ) - (4,990 ) (4,195 ) (9,185 )
Loss attributable
to noncontrolling
interest - - (93 ) - - (93 ) - (93 )
Net earnings
(loss) attributable
to Signature
Group Holdings,
Inc. $ 962 $ 479 $ (783 ) $ (5,555 ) $ - $ (4,897 ) $ (4,195 ) $ (9,092 )

Continuing Operations

(Dollars in
thousands)

Special
Situation
Lending Distribution

Consumer
Products

Corporate
and Other Eliminations Total

Discontinued
Operations Total

Nine months ended
September 30, 2010:
Revenues $115 $ - $ - $ 122 $ - $237 $ 3,619 $3,856
Expenses 38 - - 9,081 - 9,119 15,377 24,496
Other income
(expense) - - - 514 - 514 - 514
Earnings (loss)
before reorganization

77 - - (8,445 ) - (8,368 ) (11,758 ) (20,126 )
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items, net and
income taxes
Reorganization
items, net - - - 10,844 - 10,844 394 11,238
Earnings (loss)
before income taxes 77 - - (19,289 ) - (19,212 ) (12,152 ) (31,364 )
Income tax expense - - - - - - 150 150
Net earning (loss) $77 $ - $ - $ (19,289 ) $ - $(19,212 ) $ (12,302 ) $(31,514 )

Continuing Operations
Strategic Acquisitions

(Dollars in
thousands)

Special Situation
Lending DistributionConsumer Products

Corporate
and Other Eliminations Total

Discontinued
Operations Total

Segment assets:
    At September
30, 2011 $18,845 $39,245 $ 2,818 $59,176 $ (16,483 ) $103,601 $ 45,503 $149,104
    At December
31, 2010 4,218 - - 74,065 - 78,283 57,261 135,544
Segment
liabilities:
    At September
30, 2011 $7,048 $30,516 $ 2,592 $44,825 $ (16,483 ) $68,552 $ 13,676 $82,228
    At December
31, 2010 - - - 46,733 - 46,733 15,090 61,823
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NOTE 16 — DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The following tables present the assets and liabilities and financial results of the components of the Company
designated as discontinued operations as of and for the periods indicated:

Assets and Liabilities of Discontinued Operations

(Dollars in thousands)
September 30,

2011
December 31,

2010
Cash and cash equivalents $ 117 $ 568
FHLB stock 2,051 2,051
Loans held for sale, net 36,900 38,938
Commercial real estate investments 327 5,484
Note receivable 1,806 1,639
Real estate owned, net 3,867 7,003
Property and equipment, net - 778
Other assets 435 800
Total assets of discontinued operations $ 45,503 $ 57,261

Repurchase reserve $ 8,873 $ 8,873
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,803 6,217
Total liabilities of discontinued operations $ 13,676 $ 15,090

Statements of Operations of Discontinued Operations

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenues:
Interest $1,171 $1,034 $3,454 $3,319
Gain (loss) on loans held for sale 626 (2,173 ) 1,279 2,290
Loss on real estate owned, net (278 ) (1,120 ) (585 ) (2,646 )
Other, net 222 136 775 656
Total revenues 1,741 (2,123 ) 4,923 3,619

Expenses:
Compensation 21 1,676 977 4,798
Professional fees 2,296 1,475 5,359 3,964
Insurance - - - 3,497
Litigation - 20 - 1,301
Other 184 732 1,734 1,817
Total expenses 2,501 3,903 8,070 15,377

Loss from discontinued operations before reorganization
items, net and income taxes (760 ) (6,026 ) (3,147 ) (11,758 )
Reorganization items, net - - - 394
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes (760 ) (6,026 ) (3,147 ) (12,152 )
Income tax expense 621 - 1,048 150
Loss from discontinued operations $(1,381 ) $(6,026 ) $(4,195 ) $(12,302 )
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Loans held for sale, net
Loans held for sale, net is comprised of subprime residential real estate loans and is carried at the lower of aggregate
cost or estimated fair value. Estimated fair values are based on several factors, including current bids and market
indications for similar assets, recent sales, discounted cash flow analyses, estimated values of underlying collateral
and actual loss severity experience in portfolios backed by similar assets.
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The following table details the residential real estate loans held for sale as of:

(Dollars in thousands)
September 30,

2011
December 31,

2010
Unpaid principal balance $ 99,028 $ 106,598
Net deferred direct origination costs 163 184
Loans held for sale before valuation allowance 99,191 106,782
Valuation allowance (62,291 ) (67,844 )
Loans held for sale, net $ 36,900 $ 38,938
Principal balance of loans held for sale on non-accrual status $ 47,721 $ 56,589

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, non-accrual residential real estate loans as a percentage of unpaid
principal balances were 48% and 53%, respectively. There were no loans greater than 90 days past due and accruing
interest at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

A valuation allowance is maintained to adjust the loans to lower of cost or fair value. Provisions for the valuation
allowance are charged against gain (loss) on loans held for sale in the statements of operations of discontinued
operations.

Commercial real estate investments
Commercial real estate investments primarily consist of participations in community development projects and similar
types of loans and investments that FIL previously maintained for compliance under the Community Reinvestment
Act.

Loans included in commercial real estate investments are recorded at the lower of aggregate cost or fair
value.  Investments in partnerships are recorded under the equity method and periodically assessed for
impairment.  Commercial real estate investments consisted of the following as of:

(Dollars in thousands)
September 30,

2011
December 31,

2010
Loans $ 218 $ 1,018
Investments in partnerships 109 4,466
Total commercial real estate investments $ 327 $ 5,484

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, Signature sold $0.7 million and $4.0 million in
commercial real estate investments, resulting in gains of zero and $0.7 million, respectively.  There were no sales of
commercial real estate investments for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010.

Impairment of commercial real estate investments was zero and $0.4 million for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2011.  There was no impairment of commercial real estate investments for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2010.

Real estate owned, net
REO consists of residential property acquired through or in lieu of foreclosure on loans secured by residential real
estate. REO is reported in the financial statements at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. REO
consisted of the following as of:

(Dollars in thousands)
September 30,

2011
December 31,

2010
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Real estate owned $ 4,609 $ 8,208
Valuation allowance (742 ) (1,205 )
Real estate owned, net $ 3,867 $ 7,003

Loss on real estate owned, net, including provisions for losses, gain or loss on dispositions and other expenses, were
$0.3 million and $1.1 million during the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Loss on real estate owned, net, including provisions for losses, gain or loss on dispositions and other expenses, were
$0.6 million and $2.6 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Repurchase reserve
In prior years, as residential loans held for sale were sold, Fremont made customary standard industry representations
and warranties about the loans sold. The Company may have to repurchase certain loans due to material defects that
occurred in the origination of the loans. At September 30, 2011, the Company’s repurchase reserve for estimated losses
expected to be realized totaled $8.9 million.  In preparing its estimate for the repurchase reserve, which includes both
known and unknown claims, management considers the loan products, vintage, aging of repurchase claims, previous
settlements with investors and actual loss experience. Provisions for the repurchase reserve are charged against gain
(loss) on loans held for sale in the statements of operations of discontinued operations.

There were no settlements of outstanding repurchase claims during the three and nine months ended September 30,
2011.  There were $28.3 million in settlements of outstanding repurchase claims during the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2010.

Income taxes
Income tax expense was $0.6 million and zero for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.  Income tax expense was $1.0 million and $0.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively.  Refer to Note 10 – Income Taxes for additional information regarding income taxes.

NOTE 17 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal Actions
The Company is a defendant in or a party to a number of legal actions or proceedings that arise in the ordinary course
of business. In some of these actions and proceedings, claims for monetary damages are asserted against the
Company. In view of the inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome of such legal actions and proceedings, the
Company generally cannot predict what the eventual outcome of the pending matters will be, what the timing of the
ultimate resolution of these matters will be, or what the eventual loss related to each pending matter may be, if any.

In accordance with applicable accounting guidance, the Company establishes an accrued liability for litigation when
those matters present loss contingencies that are both probable and estimable. In such cases, there may be an exposure
to loss in excess of any amounts accrued. The estimated loss is based upon currently available information and is
subject to significant judgment and a variety of assumptions, and known and unknown uncertainties. The matters
underlying the estimated loss will change from time to time, and actual results may vary significantly from the current
estimate. Therefore, an estimate of possible loss represents what the Company believes to be an estimate of possible
loss only for certain matters meeting these criteria. It does not represent the Company’s maximum loss exposure.

Based on the Company’s current understanding of these pending legal actions and proceedings, management does not
believe that judgments or settlements arising from pending or threatened legal matters, individually or in the
aggregate, would have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position, operating results or cash flows
of the Company. However, in light of the inherent uncertainties involved in these matters, some of which are beyond
the Company’s control, and the very large or indeterminate damages sought in some of these matters, an adverse
outcome in one or more of these matters could be material to the Company’s results of operations or cash flows for any
particular reporting period.

The legal matters summarized below are ongoing and may have an effect on the Company’s business and future
financial condition and results of operations:
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Final Approval of Settlement of the ERISA Class Action. From April through June of 2007, six complaints seeking
class certification were filed in the United States District Court for the Central District of California against the
Company and various officers, directors and employees by participants in the Company’s prior Investment Incentive
Plan, 401(k) and Employee Stock Ownership Plan (collectively “the Benefit Plans”) alleging violations of ERISA in
connection with Company stock held by the Benefit Plans. The six complaints were consolidated in a single
proceeding. On April 15, 2010, the Court granted the Order for Class Certification under Rule 23(b)(3). On March 22,
2011, the Company entered into a settlement stipulation whereby its insurance carriers will pay $21.0 million to settle
the claims of the certified class and the Company has no further liability. On April 25, 2011, the Court granted
preliminary approval of the settlement stipulation. On August 10, 2011, the Court entered the Final Order and
Judgment approving the settlement.

Settlement of Whitesell and Stinson Matters. On November 13, 2007, Thomas Whitesell, the former Senior Vice
President of the Company’s former Commercial Real Estate (CRE) group, filed a complaint against the Company for
violations of various California labor codes, intentional misrepresentation, concealment, negligent misrepresentation,
false promises, breach of contract, conversion, breach of fiduciary duty, action for declaratory relief, unjust
enrichment – quasi-contractual recovery, gross negligence and action for specific performance (the “Whitesell Action”).
The complaint sought compensation for alleged unpaid cash bonuses and stock plan awards totaling $3.0 million. On
April 20, 2011, a similar action (the “Stinson Action”) was brought against the Company by other former employees of
the CRE Group, Steve Stinson, Brad R. Burton, Sophia Haliotis, Ronald James Claud, Lee Karny and Scott S. Manlin
(collectively with Mr. Whitesell, the “Whitesell Plaintiffs”). Each of the Whitesell Plaintiffs filed a Proof of Claim in the
Company’s bankruptcy proceeding for aggregate claims of $3.8 million.

On July 29, 2011, the Company entered into a settlement agreement and general release with the Whitesell Plaintiffs
pursuant to which the Company received executed dismissals, with prejudice, of all claims in the Whitesell Action and
the Stinson Action and the withdrawal of each related claim filed by the Whitesell Plaintiffs in the Company’s
bankruptcy proceeding. In exchange, the Company paid an aggregate settlement amount of $130,000 to the Whitesell
Plaintiffs and the Whitesell Plaintiffs each irrevocably and unconditionally released the Company and its affiliates
from all claims relating to the Whitesell Plaintiffs' working relationship with the Company or any of its predecessors
in interest.
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Cambridge Place Investment Management, Inc. v. Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. et al. (Cambridge Matter #1).   On July
22, 2010, Cambridge Place Investment Management, Inc. (“Cambridge”), as assignee of its investor clients, filed a
lawsuit in the Superior Court in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts against over 50 defendants, including the
broker/dealers, underwriters, issuers and depositors of approximately 200 Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities
(“RMBS”) offerings purchased by clients of Cambridge.  Cambridge alleges the defendants violated Massachusetts
securities laws through untrue statements and material omissions in the RMBS offering documents. The lawsuit
alleges that Cambridge clients invested over $2 billion in these RMBS offerings resulting in losses in excess of $1.2
billion. The Complaint names Fremont Mortgage Securities Corporation (“FMSC”), a wholly-owned special purpose
subsidiary of Signature, as a depositor of $8 million in one RMBS offering in 2005. The matter was then removed to
U.S. District Court in Massachusetts.  Plaintiff filed a motion to remand the case back to Superior Court in
Massachusetts.  On August 19, 2011, the matter was remanded back to the Superior Court in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. On November 22, 2011, defendants filed a joint Motion to Dismiss for lack of standing.  The hearing
on the Motion to Dismiss is set for January 12, 2012.  FMSC intends to defend itself vigorously in this matter.

Cambridge Place Investment Management, Inc. v. Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc., et al.  (Cambridge Matter #2). On
February 11, 2011, Cambridge, as assignee of its investor clients, filed a lawsuit in the Superior Court in the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts against over 30 defendants, including the broker/dealers, underwriters, issuers and
depositors of approximately 70 RMBS offerings purchased by clients of Cambridge.  Cambridge alleges the
defendants violated Massachusetts securities laws through untrue statements and material omissions in the RMBS
offering documents. The lawsuit alleges that Cambridge clients invested approximately $825 million in these RMBS
offerings resulting in losses exceeding $260 million.  The Complaint names FMSC, as a depositor of $101.3 million in
four RMBS offerings in 2004, 2005 and 2006.   The matter was then removed to U.S. District Court in
Massachusetts.  Plaintiff filed a motion to remand the case back to Superior Court in Massachusetts.  In August 2011,
in light of the ruling on remand in Cambridge Matter #1, the matter was remanded back to the Superior Court in the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts by stipulation. On November 22, 2011, defendants filed a joint Motion to Dismiss
for lack of standing.  The hearing on the Motion to Dismiss is set for January 12, 2012.  FMSC intends to defend itself
vigorously in this matter.

Colburn Matters.  On December 8, 2009, Gwyneth Colburn, the former Executive Vice President for FIL’s CRE group
filed a complaint in the California Superior Court, County of Los Angeles, against FIL and unnamed defendants for
breach of contract related to her Management Continuity Agreement (“MCA”) executed in August 2003, and extended
in August 2007. Ms. Colburn claims she is owed approximately $2.0 million, 87,183 shares of restricted stock valued
at $4.01 per share at the time of Plaintiff's termination effective August 28, 2007 and the value of 36 months of
welfare benefits. On August 9, 2011, the California Superior Court entered judgment granting the Company’s Motion
for Summary Judgment and dismissing the complaint. On September 22, 2011, Ms. Colburn filed a Notice of Appeal
from this dismissal.

On June 10, 2011, Gwyneth Colburn filed a complaint in the California Superior Court, County of Los Angeles,
against the Company, as the renamed Fremont, and unnamed defendants for breach of contract, certain California
Labor Code violations and breach of fiduciary duty related to the MCA. Ms. Colburn claims she is owed at least $3.15
million for severance, the value of 131,185 shares of restricted stock at the time of her termination and the value of 36
months of welfare benefits. On August 26, 2011, Ms. Colburn dismissed this complaint, without prejudice.

Ms. Colburn’s Proof of Claim for $2.6 million in the Fremont Bankruptcy Proceeding for severance, bonus, welfare
benefits and restricted stock remains outstanding and the Company intends to vigorously defend against this claim.

Walker Matters. On June 10, 2011, Kyle Walker, the former Chief Executive Officer and President of FIL, filed a
complaint in the California Superior Court, County of Los Angeles, against the Company and unnamed defendants for
breach of contract, certain California Labor Code violations and breach of fiduciary duty related to his MCA executed

Edgar Filing: SIGNATURE GROUP HOLDINGS, INC. - Form 10-Q

54



in August 2003, and extended in August 2006. Mr. Walker claims he is owed at least $3.5 million for severance, the
value of 131,185 shares of restricted stock at the time of his termination and the value of 36 months of welfare
benefits. On August 26, 2011, Mr. Walker dismissed this complaint, without prejudice, against the Company as
successor in interest to Fremont, but not a successor in interest to FIL. Trial has been set to commence on September
11, 2012. The Company intends to vigorously defend against this lawsuit.

Mr. Walker’s Proof of Claim for $2.6 million in the Fremont Bankruptcy Proceeding for severance, bonus, welfare
benefits and restricted stock remains outstanding. The Company intends to vigorously defend against this claim.

National Credit Union Administration v. RBS Securities, et al (NCUA I). On June 20, 2011, The National Credit
Union Association (“NCUA”), the regulator of federal credit unions, acting as liquidator of U.S. Central Federal Credit
Union (U.S. Central), filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Court in Kansas for unspecified damages to be proven at trial
against the underwriter, issuers and depositors of 29 RMBS offerings purchased by U.S. Central.  NCUA alleges that
the defendants violated federal and state securities laws through untrue statements and material omissions in the
RMBS offering documents. The lawsuit alleges that U.S. Central invested a total of $1.7 billion in these RMBS
offerings.  The Complaint names FMSC, as a depositor of $50 million in two RMBS offerings in 2006. On December
20, 2011, the Company filed a Motion to Dismiss. No hearing date has been set. FMSC intends to defend itself
vigorously in this matter.

National Credit Union Administration v. Goldman Sachs, et al. (NCUA II). On August 9, 2011, NCUA, acting as
liquidator of U.S. Central, filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Court in California for unspecified damages to be proven
at trial against the underwriter, issuers and depositors of 21 RMBS offerings purchased by U.S. Central. NCUA
alleges that the defendants violated federal and state securities laws through untrue statements and material omissions
in the RMBS offering documents. The lawsuit alleges that U.S. Central invested a total of $1.2 billion in these RMBS
offerings. The complaint names FMSC, as a depositor of $50 million in two RMBS offerings in 2006. These
allegations against FMSC are identical to those in NCUA I. On December 27, 2011, NCUA voluntarily dismissed the
matter without prejudice.

Faigin Matters.  On January 15, 2009, Alan Faigin, a former General Counsel of Fremont, filed a Complaint against
Fremont Reorganizing Corporation (“FRC”) (formerly known as FIL) in the California Superior Court, County of Los
Angeles. On February 3, 2009 Mr. Faigin filed an amended Complaint alleging wrongful termination, breach of his
employment agreement, breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, fraud and misrepresentation,
negligent misrepresentation and violation of various California labor codes, among other allegations under a “joint
employer” theory. In February 2010, a jury found for Mr. Faigin and awarded him damages in the amount of
approximately $1.4 million. The Company is appealing the judgment and has recorded a liability of approximately
$1.4 million in the first quarter of 2010 related to this matter. As a requirement of the appeal process, a cash bond was
posted by the Company in the amount of approximately $2.0 million with the Court. The Company has filed its
Opening Brief and Mr. Faigin has filed a combined Opposition and Reply Brief. No hearing date has been set.

On April 27, 2009, FRC filed a Cross-Complaint against Mr. Faigin for Breach of Confidence, Breach of Fiduciary
Duty, Representing Conflicting Interests and Indemnification. On June 9, 2009, the trial court dismissed the
Cross-Complaint pursuant to California’s anti-SLAPP statute. FRC appealed the dismissal of this Cross-Complaint. On
August 30, 2011, the Court of Appeals of the State of California reversed and remanded the dismissal of FRC’s
Cross-Complaint causes of action against Mr. Faigin for Breach of Fiduciary and Breach of Confidence. The
Company intends to pursue these actions to recover damages it suffered as a result of these breaches.
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Securities Class Action. In September 2007, three separate complaints seeking class certification were filed in the
United States District Court for the Central District of California (the “Trial Court”) against Fremont and various
officers and directors alleging violations of federal securities laws in connection with published statements by
Fremont regarding its loan portfolio and loans held for resale during the period from October 27, 2005 through March
2, 2007. These three class action lawsuits were consolidated into a single proceeding and a consolidated class action
complaint was filed on March 3, 2008, as amended (the “Complaint”). On March 29, 2010, the Trial Court entered an
Order Granting Fremont’s Motion to Dismiss the Complaint with prejudice (the “Court Order”). Plaintiffs appealed the
Court Order to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit (the “Appellate Court”).  On November 29, 2011,
the Appellate Court affirmed the dismissal of the Complaint with prejudice by the Trial Court.

Kingstown/McIntyre Matters.
On July 15, 2011 and July 18, 2011, James McIntyre, Kingstown Partners Master Ltd. and other entities affiliated
therewith, Michael Blitzer, J. Hunter Brown, Robert A. Peiser, Laurie M. Shahon, Joyce White, Robert Willens and
Guy Shanon (collectively, the “Shareholder Group”) filed Schedule 13D's indicating that such persons and entities had
formed a “group” (as defined by Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act) in connection with the Shareholder Group's
intention to nominate a slate of directors for election to the Company's Board of Directors (the “Board”) at the
Company's next annual meeting of shareholders.

As a result of the formation of the Shareholder Group, the Board continues to evaluate whether the Shareholder Group
should be determined to be an “Acquiring Person” (as defined in that certain Rights Agreement, dated as of October 23,
2007, as amended (the “Rights Agreement”), between the Company and Mellon Investor Services LLC (the “Rights
Agent”)) and if such determination is made, whether a Distribution Date (as defined in the Rights Agreement) for the
distribution of rights under and pursuant to the Rights Agreement will occur. The Company previously announced that
the Board had extended the date by which such determinations needed to be made until December 2, 2011.  On
November 28, 2011, the Board further extended the date to make such determinations to January 31, 2012.

On August 12, 2011, James McIntyre, Kingstown Partners Master Ltd. and other entities affiliated therewith
(collectively, the “Plaintiffs”) filed a complaint, as amended (the “Complaint”), with the Second Judicial District Court of
the State of Nevada in and for the County of Washoe (the “State Court”) against the Company seeking (i) a declaration
that the Rights Agreement has no force and effect, (ii) a declaration that the Plaintiffs are not an Acquiring Person,
and (iii) an injunction against the Board from implementing the Rights Agreement (the “Proceeding”). In the Complaint,
the Plaintiffs claimed that the Rights Agreement was rejected in connection with the Company's bankruptcy
proceeding, which concluded in June 2010, or if the Rights Agreement is determined to not to have been rejected, that
the Shareholder Group is not an Acquiring Person and, therefore, the condition for implementing the Rights
Agreement cannot be satisfied.

On August 31, 2011, the Company filed a Notice of Removal of Pending State Court Action to remove the Proceeding
to the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the District of Nevada (the “Nevada Federal Bankruptcy Court”). As a result, the
Proceeding was removed to the Nevada Federal Bankruptcy Court.  The Company removed the Proceeding because,
among other reasons, a central issue in the Proceeding is whether the Rights Agreement was assumed, and otherwise
remained in full force and effect, under the Company's Chapter 11 Fourth Amended Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan”),
which was confirmed by the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Central District of California (the “California
Federal Bankruptcy Court”) by order dated June 9, 2010 (the “Confirmation Order”).
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Because the Proceeding involves issues central to the Confirmation Order, the Company also separately filed a motion
(the “Motion”) with the California Federal Bankruptcy Court on September 19, 2011 seeking an order confirming that
the Rights Agreement was assumed under the Plan and granting related relief.

On September 26, 2011, the Company filed a motion to move for the transfer of venue of the Proceeding from the
Nevada Federal Bankruptcy Court to the California Federal Bankruptcy Court (the “Transfer Motion”) since the
California Federal Bankruptcy Court retained jurisdiction on matters relating to the Plan covered by the Confirmation
Order. On November 9, 2011, the Nevada Federal Bankruptcy Court entered an order granting the Transfer Motion.

On November 29, 2011, the California Federal Bankruptcy Court ruled at a hearing on the Motion that the Rights
Agreement was assumed under the Plan and remains in full force and effect following the Confirmation Order and the
Company's emergence from bankruptcy proceedings. On December 9, 2011, the California Federal Bankruptcy Court
entered its order on the aforementioned ruling (the “Rights Agreement Order”).

On December 7, 2011, Mr. McIntyre filed an amendment to his Schedule 13D to report the termination of his
agreement with the Shareholder Group to (i) solicit proxies or written consents for the election of persons nominated
by the Shareholder Group to the Board at the next annual meeting of shareholders and (ii) serve as a nominee on the
Shareholder Group's proposed slate of directors for election to the Board.  On the same day, the Plaintiffs filed a
Notice of Dismissal with the California Federal Bankruptcy Court dismissing the Proceeding.

On December 21, 2011, (i) Kingstown Partners Master Ltd., Kingstown Partners II L.P. and KTown LP, and (ii) Mr.
McIntyre separately filed notices of appeal with the California Federal Bankruptcy Court from the Rights Agreement
Order.

The Company is involved in additional disputes as summarized below:

Bankruptcy Professional Fee Disputes. As of September 30, 2011, there remained one outstanding bankruptcy
professional fee dispute from one firm which aggregated $1.2 million.  On May 6, 2011, the Bankruptcy Court took
the remaining professional fee dispute under submission. A ruling has not been made.  On October 19, 2011, pursuant
to a Bankruptcy Court Order, Signature transferred $1.5 million to a trust account for the sole and exclusive purpose
of securing payment of any allowed fees and costs awarded to the firm, pursuant to the pending contested fee
application.

Unpaid Claims. As of September 30, 2011, there remained $10.4 million in open claims filed with the Bankruptcy
Court (the “Unpaid Claims”), comprised of $6.8 million in claims by former employees, $2.7 million in claims filed
subsequent to the Effective Date and after the claims bar date, and $0.9 million in contract claims. The Company is
actively seeking the voluntary withdrawal of, the settlement of, or has plans to object to all other Unpaid Claims in the
Bankruptcy Court. Signature does not believe it has any liability associated with these remaining Unpaid Claims.

31

Edgar Filing: SIGNATURE GROUP HOLDINGS, INC. - Form 10-Q

57



Table of Contents

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

Certain statements in this report, including, without limitation, matters discussed under Item 2, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements, related notes, and other detailed information included in Signature Group Holdings, Inc.’s
(“Signature,” formerly Fremont General Corporation (“Fremont”), or “Company”, “we,” “us” or “our”) Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (the “Annual Report”).  We are including this cautionary statement to
make applicable and take advantage of the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. Statements that are not historical fact are forward-looking statements. Certain of these forward-looking
statements can be identified by the use of words such as “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “projects,”
“estimates,” “assumes,” “may,” “should,” “will,” or other similar expressions.  Such forward-looking statements involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors, which could cause actual results, performance or
achievements to differ materially from future results, performance or achievements.  These forward-looking
statements are based on our current beliefs, intentions and expectations.  These statements are not guarantees or
indicative of future performance.  Important assumptions and other important factors that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those factors, risks and
uncertainties described in the Annual Report under the caption “Risk Factors” and in our other filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

All forward looking statements set forth herein are qualified by these cautionary statements and are made only as of
the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to update or revise the information contained herein, including without
limitation any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, subsequent events or
circumstances, or otherwise, unless otherwise required by law.

OVERVIEW

Signature is a diversified business and financial services enterprise that intends to generate strong, risk-adjusted return
on equity while protecting shareholder capital.  We presently operate in two primary business lines: (i) Special
Situation Lending; and (ii) Strategic Acquisitions, which are more fully discussed herein.  In July 2011, we made the
first material acquisition in our Strategic Acquisitions business line, acquiring 100% of the common stock of North
American Breaker Company, Inc. (“NABCO”), a national market leader in the supply of circuit breakers to wholesale
distributors serving various commercial, industrial and residential applications. Additionally, we maintain and are
managing certain legacy assets and liabilities related to Fremont’s former businesses, which include a portfolio of
subprime residential real estate mortgages, residential real estate, commercial real estate investments, litigation claims
under fidelity insurance bonds held by Fremont (the “Legacy Assets”) and are reported as discontinued operations.

After a nearly two year reorganization process, Fremont emerged from bankruptcy proceedings and filed Amended
and Restated Articles of Incorporation with the Office of the Secretary of the State for the State of Nevada on June 11,
2010 (the “Effective Date”), which, among other things, changed Fremont’s name to Signature Group Holdings,
Inc.  Previously, on May 25, 2010, the Bankruptcy Court had entered an order, as amended (the “Confirmation Order”),
confirming Signature Group Holdings, LLC’s Fourth Amended Chapter 11 Plan of Reorganization of Fremont General
Corporation, Joined by James McIntyre as Co-Plan Proponent, dated May 11, 2010, as amended (the “Plan”).

During the bankruptcy period, Fremont’s operations focused on maximizing the value of its assets, which included the
liquidation and sale of certain assets, and minimizing its costs and liabilities through the negotiation and resolution of
litigation, loan repurchase claims and other claims. In particular, Fremont managed its remaining residential and
commercial loan portfolios, commercial real estate investments and other assets.  Accordingly, the Company’s results
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of operations include reorganization items, which are direct costs incurred by Fremont operating as a
debtor-in-possession during bankruptcy proceedings.  These items include professional fees, trustee fees and other
expenses directly related to the bankruptcy filing, gains or losses resulting from activities of the reorganization process
offset by interest earned on cash accumulated while in bankruptcy.

Operating Segments.  The presentation set forth below in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis and in the
Company’s unaudited consolidated financial statements present the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations by operating segment.  Continuing operations includes our two primary business lines: (i) Special Situation
Lending and (ii) Strategic Acquisitions.  We have four primary operating segments, Special Situation Lending,
Strategic Acquisitions – Distribution, Strategic Acquisitions – Consumer Products and Discontinued Operations.
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Special Situation Lending
In our Special Situation Lending business line, we focus on providing senior secured and junior secured debt
financing to middle market companies in the form of newly originated commercial and industrial loans, leases, and
real estate mortgages in healthy and distressed situations.  We also look to acquire similarly structured debt
instruments as well as, on occasion, corporate bonds, trade claims, and other structured debt instruments, which may
be performing, sub-performing or non-performing.  Generally, debt obligations acquired will be made at a discount to
par value, or unpaid principal balance.

Strategic Acquisitions
In our Strategic Acquisitions business line, we provide capital to middle market companies whereby we obtain a
significant equity interest in a company either through the direct purchase of a controlling interest, and in some cases
all or substantially all of its equity, or through a structured debt transaction that results in our obtaining a significant
equity interest from a debt-for-equity conversion, bankruptcy or foreclosure event, or other transactions. We may also
acquire specialized assets such as product or brand licenses, royalty streams, subscriber bases or divisions of larger
companies.  Our acquisitions may involve companies operating in healthy or distressed situations.  Currently, our
Strategic Acquisitions business line includes two acquired businesses that are identified as our Strategic Acquisitions –
Distribution and Strategic Acquisitions – Consumer Products operating segments.

Discontinued Operations
Discontinued operations presents the financial condition and results of operations for the assets, liabilities, businesses
and operations that were sold or discontinued by Fremont prior to the Effective Date.  The assets and liabilities
primarily include a portfolio of subprime residential real estate mortgages, residential real estate, commercial real
estate investments and liabilities associated with the former lending and retail banking businesses. We also hold
subordinated securities and residual interests resulting from Fremont's prior residential real estate loan securitization
activity, which may result in future cash flow. These assets and liabilities are being managed to maximize cash
recoveries and value for our shareholders and are expected to be redeployed into our long term business strategy over
time.  Refer to Note 16 ― Discontinued Operations in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q for more information about the Company’s Discontinued Operations.

Corporate and Other
Corporate and other costs primarily represent corporate administrative expenses related to those administrative,
financial and human resource activities that are not allocated to operations and are excluded from segment results of
operations. These costs are not allocated to the segments, as management excludes such costs when assessing the
performance of the segments.

Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.  As of September 30, 2011, the Company's internal
control over financial reporting was not effective and it was determined that the material weakness identified as of
December 31, 2010 had not been fully remediated.  The Company is currently working to remediate the material
weakness in its internal control over financial reporting. See Item 4, “Controls and Procedures” of this Form 10-Q for
more information about the Company’s assessment of its internal control over financial reporting and the related
material weakness, as well as the Company’s continuing efforts to remediate such weakness.  Notwithstanding the
assessment that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was not effective and that there was a material
weakness as discussed in Part I, Item 4 of this Form 10-Q, the Company believes that the financial statements
contained in this Form 10-Q and discussed in Management’s Discussion and Analysis, fairly and accurately present the
financial position, results of operations and cash flows for each of the periods presented, in all material respects.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”). The Company’s accounting policies are fundamental to understanding
management’s discussion and analysis of results of operations and financial condition. Several of our policies are
critical as they require management to make difficult, subjective and complex judgments about matters that are
inherently uncertain and affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses included in the
consolidated financial statements.  Circumstances and events that differ significantly from those underlying the
Company’s estimates, assumptions and judgments could cause the actual amounts reported to differ significantly from
these estimates.

The Company’s critical accounting policies include those that address (i) accounting for reorganizations, (ii)
discontinued operations, (iii) gain (loss) on loans held for sale, (iv) fair value measurements, (v) guarantees
(repurchase reserve), (vi) common stock warrant liability, (vii) real estate owned, and (viii) income taxes.  See Part II,
Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in the Annual Report
for more information about the Company’s critical accounting policies. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates
and assumptions based upon historical experience and various other factors and circumstances. We believe that our
estimates and assumptions are reasonable under the circumstances; however, actual results may differ significantly
from these estimates and assumptions, which could have a material impact on the carrying value of assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet dates and our results of operations for the reporting periods.
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As a result of implementing our business plan through the Special Situation Lending and Strategic Acquisitions
business lines, the following changes were made to the Company’s critical accounting policies during the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2011 to also address:

Business Combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, whereby the assets and liabilities of the
acquired business are recorded at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price
over the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. The excess of the estimated fair
values of the net assets acquired over the purchase price is recorded as a gain on acquisition.  Any changes in the
estimated fair values of the net assets recorded for acquisitions prior to the finalization of more detailed analysis, but
not to exceed a reasonable period of time (generally one year from the date of acquisition), will change the amount of
the purchase price allocable to goodwill or gain on acquisition.

The Company estimates and records the acquisition date estimated fair value of contingent consideration, if any, as
part of purchase price consideration. Additionally, each reporting period, the Company estimates changes in the fair
value of contingent consideration and any change in fair value is recognized in the Company’s consolidated statements
of operations.  An increase in the expected earn-out will result in a charge to operations in the quarter that the
anticipated fair value of contingent consideration increases, while a decrease in the expected earn-out will result in a
credit to operations in the quarter that the anticipated fair value of contingent consideration decreases.  The estimate of
the fair value of contingent consideration requires subjective assumptions to be made about future operating results,
discount rates, and probabilities assigned to various potential operating result scenarios. Future revisions to these
assumptions could materially change the estimate of the fair value of contingent consideration and, therefore,
materially affect the Company’s future financial results.

Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.  The results of operations of acquired businesses are included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which represent the
period over which the asset is expected to contribute directly or indirectly to future cash flows.  Intangible assets with
finite lives are reviewed for impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate the carrying value of such assets
may not be recoverable. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment on an annual
basis, or sooner if an indicator of impairment is present.  Tests for impairment or recoverability require significant
management judgment, and future events affecting cash flows and market conditions could result in impairment
losses.

Revenue Recognition
Revenues from product sales are recognized upon transfer of ownership, including passage of title to the customer and
transfer of the risk of loss related to those goods.  Revenues are reported on a net sales basis, which is computed by
deducting from gross sales amounts related to product returns, discounts and allowances.

Inventories
Inventories consist of manufactured goods and goods acquired for resale and are stated at the lower of cost or
market.  Inventory costs are determined on a first-in, first-out basis for our Strategic Acquisitions – Consumer Products
segment and on a moving average historical cost for our Strategic Acquisitions – Distributions segment.

Purchased Credit-Impaired Loans
Purchased credit-impaired loans are loans acquired at a discount to face value where, at the acquisition date, based on
the credit quality of the borrower, the Company expects to collect less than the contractual amounts due under the
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terms of the loan.  The excess of the cash flows expected to be collected over the initial investment is referred to as the
accretable yield and is recognized in interest income over the expected life of the loans using the effective yield
method.  The excess of contractual cash flows over cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition is referred to as
the non-accretable difference and is not recognized as an adjustment of yield, loss accrual, or valuation allowance.
Subsequent increases in cash flows expected to be collected are recognized prospectively through adjustment of the
loan’s yield over its remaining life. Subsequent decreases in cash flows expected to be collected are evaluated to
determine whether the loan is impaired.
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There were no other changes in our critical accounting policies from those disclosed in the Annual Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

General
During the third quarter of 2011, we completed the first material strategic acquisition of an operating business.  On
July 29, 2011, we acquired 100% of the common stock of NABCO pursuant to the terms of a Stock Purchase
Agreement by and among Signature, NABCO and the two shareholders of NABCO (the “NABCO
Acquisition”).  Headquartered in Burbank, California, NABCO is a nationwide quick-turn supplier of circuit breakers
that maintains a significant depth of certified, new product inventory utilized in various commercial, industrial and
residential applications, including products that have been discontinued by the manufacturer and are no longer broadly
available. NABCO operates from five distribution centers across the country to offer customers quick and reliable
nationwide delivery in the repair and replacement niche. Prior to the NABCO Acquisition, NABCO had
approximately $26.3 million in sales and $4.8 million in net income for its year ended December 31, 2010, and
approximately $14.8 million in sales and $3.7 million in net income (unaudited) for its six months ended June 30,
2011. For additional information about the NABCO Acquisition and historical financial results of NABCO prior to the
NABCO Acquisition, see our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 1, 2011 and the Amendment
No. 1 to this Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 12, 2011. NABCO’s historical financial results and performance
prior to the NABCO Acquisition is not an indication of the future performance of the NABCO business and should
not be relied upon for such purpose. The total consideration paid at the closing of the transaction was $36.9 million,
which included a cash payment of approximately $23.4 million, the issuance of $5.0 million in subordinated,
unsecured promissory notes (the “Seller Notes”), the issuance of Signature common stock with a fair value of $1.8
million, the assumption of $3.1 million in liabilities and a $3.5 million estimated liability for contingent
consideration.  At the date of acquisition, the Company identified temporary differences between the book and tax
bases of the acquired identifiable assets and assumed liabilities and recorded a deferred tax liability, net of deferred
tax assets, of $2.7 million.  The recognition of this $2.7 million net deferred tax liability resulted in an income tax
benefit to the Company resulting from a reduction of a portion of the Company’s valuation allowance against its net
deferred tax assets.  As a result of this transaction, Signature’s consolidated operations reflect substantial changes from
prior reporting periods.

Three Months Ended September 30, 2011

The following is a summary of significant operating results for the three months ended September 30, 2011.

•Net earnings attributable to Signature Group Holdings, Inc. of $1.3 million for the three months ended September
30, 2011, as compared to a loss of $9.5 million for the comparable period in 2010.
―Earnings from continuing operations of $2.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to
a loss of $3.5 million for the comparable 2010 period.
―Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes of $1.4 million for the three months ended September 30,
2011, as compared to $6.0 million for the comparable 2010 period.

•Revenues of $6.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $62 thousand for the
comparable 2010 period.

•Expenses of $10.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $3.0 million for the
comparable 2010 period.

•Other income (expense) of $4.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $0.2
million for the comparable 2010 period.
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•Reorganization items, net of $63 thousand for the three months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $0.8
million for the comparable 2010 period.

•Income tax benefit of $2.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to zero for the
comparable 2010 period.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011

The following is a summary of significant operating results for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.
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• Net loss attributable to Signature Group Holdings, Inc. of $9.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011, as compared to $31.5 million for the comparable period in 2010.

―Loss from continuing operations of $5.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to
$19.2 million for the comparable 2010 period.
―Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes of $4.2 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2011, as compared to $12.3 million for the comparable 2010 period.

•Revenues of $7.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $0.2 million for the
comparable 2010 period.

•Expenses of $19.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $9.1 million for the
comparable 2010 period.

•Other income of $5.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $0.5 million for the
comparable 2010 period.

•Reorganization items, net of $1.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $10.8
million for the comparable 2010 period.

•Income tax benefit of $2.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, as compared to zero for the
comparable 2010 period.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table presents selected components of the Company’s consolidated statements of operations for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenues $6,612 $62 $7,880 $237
Expenses 10,789 3,027 19,413 9,119
Other income (expense) 4,215 249 5,169 514
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before
reorganization items, net and income taxes 38 (2,716 ) (6,364 ) (8,368 )
Reorganization items, net 63 794 1,388 10,844
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (25 ) (3,510 ) (7,752 ) (19,212 )
Income tax benefit (2,650 ) - (2,762 ) -
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 2,625 (3,510 ) (4,990 ) (19,212 )
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (1,381 ) (6,026 ) (4,195 ) (12,302 )
Net earnings (loss) 1,244 (9,536 ) (9,185 ) (31,514 )
Loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (31 ) - (93 ) -
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. $1,275 $(9,536 ) $(9,092 ) $(31,514 )

Three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to three months ended September 30, 2010

General
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Net earnings attributable to Signature Group Holdings, Inc. increased $10.8 million to $1.3 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to a loss of $9.5 million for the three months ended September 30,
2010.  The increase is related to a $6.1 million decrease in loss from continuing operations to earnings of $2.6 million
for the three months ended September 30, 2011, and a $7.4 million decrease in loss from discontinued operations, net
of income taxes to $1.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011.
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Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings from continuing operations increased $6.1 million to $2.6 million for the three months ended September 30,
2011 as compared to a loss of $3.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase is related to
a $6.6 million increase in revenues, a $4.0 million increase in other income (expense), a $0.7 million decrease in
reorganization items, net, and a $2.7 million increase in income tax benefit, partially offset by a $7.8 million increase
in expenses.  See “Review of Operating Segments Results of Operations” below for additional detail.

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes decreased $4.6 million to a loss of $1.4 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $6.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The
decrease is primarily related to a $3.9 million increase in revenues and a $1.4 million decrease in expenses, partially
offset by a $0.6 million increase in income tax expense for the three months ended September 30, 2011.  See “Review
of Operating Segments Results of Operations - Discontinued Operations” below for additional detail.

Nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to nine months ended September 30, 2010

General
Net loss attributable to Signature Group Holdings, Inc. decreased $22.4 million to $9.1 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $31.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The
decrease in net loss is primarily related to a $14.2 million decrease in loss from continuing operations to $5.0 million
for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, and an $8.1 million decrease in loss from discontinued operations, net
of income taxes to $4.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

Loss from continuing operations
Loss from continuing operations decreased $14.2 million to $5.0 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2011 as compared to $19.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease is related to a $9.5
million decrease in reorganization items, net, a $7.6 million increase in revenues, a $4.7 million increase in other
income (expense) and a $2.8 million increase in income tax benefit.  Partially offsetting the decrease in loss was a
$10.3 million increase in expenses.  See “Review of Operating Segments Results of Operations” below for additional
detail.

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes decreased $8.1 million to a loss of $4.2 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $12.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The
decrease is primarily related to a $7.3 million decrease in expenses, a $1.3 million increase in revenues and a $0.4
million decrease in reorganization items, net, partially offset by a $0.9 million increase in income tax expense for the
nine months ended September 30, 2011.  See “Review of Operating Segments Results of Operations - Discontinued
Operations” below for additional detail.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL CONDITION

The following table presents selected components of the Company’s consolidated balance sheets as of September 30,
2011 and December 31, 2010.

September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in the thousands) 2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents $ 46,977 $ 70,424
Investment securities, available for sale 4,961 2,184
Loans receivable, net 8,216 1,967
Trade and other receivables, net 4,997 198
Inventories 8,577 -
Goodwill 18,381 -
Intangible assets, net 8,617 -
Other assets 2,875 3,510
Assets of discontinued operations 45,503 57,261
TOTAL ASSETS $ 149,104 $ 135,544

Lines of credit $ 4,680 $ -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 6,123 2,033
Contingent consideration 3,525 -
Long-term debt 52,000 39,000
Common stock warrant liability 2,224 5,700
Liabilities of discontinued operations 13,676 15,090
TOTAL LIABILITIES 82,228 61,823
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 66,876 73,721
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 149,104 $ 135,544

September 30, 2011 compared to December 31, 2010

General
Total assets increased by $13.6 million or 10.0% to $149.1 million at September 30, 2011 from $135.5 million at
December 31, 2010, primarily as a result of the NABCO Acquisition.  Additionally, Cosmed, Inc. (“Cosmed”), a newly
formed subsidiary of Signature, also made a small acquisition of the assets and assumption of certain liabilities of a
consumer products business in the first quarter of 2011 (the “Cosmed Acquisition”).  Also, we continued to grow our
Special Situations segment with increases to our investment securities, available for sale and loans receivable, net of
$2.8 million and $6.2 million, respectively.  Partially offsetting the increase in assets was a $23.4 million decrease in
cash and cash equivalents and an $11.8 million decrease in assets of discontinued operations.  Total liabilities
increased by $20.4 million or 33.0% to $82.2 million at September 30, 2011 from $61.8 million at December 31,
2010, primarily as a result of the liabilities assumed in the NABCO Acquisition.  Partially offsetting the increase was
a $3.5 million decrease in common stock warrant liability and a $2.0 million decrease in liabilities of discontinued
operations.

Total shareholders’ equity decreased to $66.9 million at September 30, 2011 from $73.7 million at December 31,
2010.    The decrease in shareholders’ equity is primarily related to the $9.2 million net loss for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 which is discussed in more detail above under “Consolidated Results of Operations,” partially offset
by a $1.8 million increase attributable to common stock issued as part of purchase consideration for the NABCO
Acquisition.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents decreased $23.4 million to $47.0 million at September 30, 2011 from $70.4 million at
December 31, 2010 primarily due to $23.4 million in cash consideration paid in the NABCO Acquisition, the
purchase and funding of $6.5 million of senior secured debt, the purchase of $4.7 million of investment securities,
available for sale, and $1.0 million related to the Cosmed Acquisition.  Additionally, the decrease in cash and cash
equivalents is due to the payment of expenses associated with the $9.2 million net loss for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011.  The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was partially offset by $12.5 million in proceeds
related to borrowings from a new senior credit facility.  See “Lines of credit” and “Long-term debt” below for additional
details. The Company received $3.8 million in net proceeds from the sale of its Anaheim Hills, California facility and
related land, $2.0 million in proceeds from a corporate bond called at par and $4.6 million and $4.2 million in
proceeds received from the sale of commercial real estate investments and real estate owned, net, respectively, within
the assets of discontinued operations.
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Investment securities, available for sale
Investment securities available for sale increased $2.8 million to $5.0 million at September 30, 2011 from $2.2 million
at December 31, 2010.  The increase was primarily due to the purchase of $5.7 million par value in corporate bonds
for $4.7 million.  The increase was partially offset by $1.9 million in corporate bonds that were called at par during
the third quarter ended September 30, 2011.  The call of the corporate bonds resulted in a gain of $71 thousand during
the three months ended September 30, 2011.

Loans receivable, net
Loans receivable, net increased $6.2 million to $8.2 million at September 30, 2011 from $2.0 million at December 31,
2010.  The increase was primarily due to the purchase of $8.4 million in senior secured debt of a manufacturing
company that specializes in retail store fixtures and merchandise displays for $4.3 million.  The senior secured debt
consists of a performing revolving line of credit and a credit-impaired term loan.  The revolving line of credit and term
loan have variable interest rates based upon the Prime rate plus 2.50% which was equivalent to 5.75% at September
30, 2011.  Subsequent to the purchase of the senior secured debt, the Company funded an additional $2.2 million, net
of repayments, on the revolving line of credit.

Trade and other receivables, net
Trade and other receivables, net increased $4.8 million to $5.0 million at September 30, 2011 from $0.2 million at
December 31, 2010.  The increase was due to the Cosmed Acquisition and NABCO Acquisition during February 2011
and July 2011, respectively.

Inventories
Inventories increased $8.6 million to $8.6 million at September 30, 2011 from zero at December 31, 2010.  The
increase was due to the Cosmed Acquisition and NABCO Acquisition.  Of the $8.6 million in inventories, $1.2
million is consumer products inventory consisting of a line of skin care products for women, which is available in
retail stores across the country and $7.4 million is electrical component inventory primarily consisting of new
electrical circuit breakers for use in commercial, industrial and residential applications.

Intangible assets, net
Intangible assets, net increased $8.6 million to $8.6 million at September 30, 2011 from zero at December 31,
2010.  The increase was due to the Cosmed Acquisition and NABCO Acquisition.  The total purchase consideration,
for each acquisition, was allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition dates.  The acquired identifiable intangible assets related to the
Cosmed Acquisition primarily included product formulas of $0.8 million, trademarks of $0.2 million, customer lists of
$0.1 million and domain names of $0.1 million. The acquired identifiable intangible assets related to the NABCO
Acquisition primarily included customer relationships of $7.3 million and trade names of $0.9 million.  The fair
values of acquired identifiable intangible assets were estimated based on projected future cash flows, discounted using
an estimated weighted average cost of capital.

Goodwill
Goodwill increased $18.4 million to $18.4 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to zero at December 31,
2010.  Goodwill was recorded as a result of the NABCO Acquisition during the third quarter of 2011.  The assets and
liabilities of NABCO were recorded at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase
price over the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired resulted in $18.4 million of goodwill.

Lines of credit
Lines of credit increased $4.7 million to $4.7 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to zero at December 31,
2010.  The increase was primarily related to NABCO’s debt financing transaction (the “NABCO Financing”) with a
third-party lender (the “Lender”) completed on September 30, 2011.  The NABCO Financing was completed pursuant to
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the terms of two business loan agreements, one of which provides for a term loan and the second of which provides
for a revolving, asset-based loan.  NABCO borrowed $4.6 million of an $8.0 million revolving asset-based loan (the
“Revolving Loan”), which matures on September 29, 2014.  Advances under the Revolving Loan are subject to a
borrowing base.  The Revolving Loan has a variable interest rate based upon the Lender’s Base Rate, which is
equivalent to 4.00% at September 30, 2011. 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities increased $4.1 million to $6.1 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to
$2.0 million at December 31, 2010.  The increase is primarily attributable to $3.1 million in accrued expenses and
other liabilities of Cosmed and NABCO at September 30, 2011 associated with the business combinations during
2011.  Additionally, accrued expenses and other liabilities increased due to corporate and other professional fees.
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Long-term debt
Long-term debt increased $13.0 million to $52.0 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to $39.0 million at
December 31, 2010.  The increase was related to the NABCO Financing whereby NABCO borrowed $8.0 million in
term debt (the “Term Loan”), which matures on September 29, 2016 and is subject to annual principal payments of 10%
of the original principal amount of the Term Loan in year 1; 15% of the original principal amount of the Term Loan in
each of years 2 and 3; 20% of the original principal amount of the Term Loan in each of years 4 and 5; and a balloon
payment of any remaining principal balance due at maturity.   The Term Loan has a variable interest rate based upon
the Lender’s Base Rate plus 1.00% per annum, which is equivalent to 5.00% at September 30, 2011.  Additionally, the
increase in long-term debt was due to the issuance of $5.0 million in Seller Notes to the former NABCO shareholders
as part of the consideration paid for the NABCO Acquisition.  The Seller Notes mature on January 29, 2016, have a
fixed 6% interest rate and are subject to scheduled quarterly principal and interest payments beginning December
2011.

Contingent consideration
Contingent consideration increased $3.5 million to $3.5 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to zero at
December 31, 2010.  An estimated liability for contingent consideration was recorded as a result of the NABCO
Acquisition during the third quarter of 2011.  The former NABCO shareholders may earn contingent consideration of
up to $4.0 million, subject to the achievement of certain EBITDA milestones for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2012.

In connection with the Cosmed Acquisition, the Company is obligated to make an additional earn-out payment of up
to $5.0 million, subject to a revenue target of $60.0 million in annualized revenues being achieved over any three
month period within 36 months of the acquisition date, or if the Company sells Cosmed for at least $60.0 million
during a specified time period, not to exceed 39 months from the acquisition date. At both the acquisition date and at
September 30, 2011, management determined the fair value of this contingent consideration to be zero, based upon
current and projected revenues over the requisite earn-out period.

The estimate of the fair value of contingent consideration is based on the Company’s expectation about future
operating results and includes assumptions related to discount rates and probabilities assigned to various profitability
scenarios.  Any change in estimated fair value of contingent consideration is recorded in other income (expense) in the
Company’s consolidated statements of operations.

Common stock warrant liability
Common stock warrant liability decreased $3.5 million to $2.2 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to $5.7
million at December 31, 2010.  Pursuant to the Plan, for an aggregate cash purchase price of $0.3 million, Signature
issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 15 million shares of Signature common stock (the “Warrants”).

The Warrants include a ratchet anti-dilution protection provision, which provides for a reduction in the exercise price
of the Warrants if any common stock (or equivalents), other than common stock (or equivalents) issued under the
Signature Group Holdings, Inc. 2006 Performance Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”), of the Company is issued at a
price per share less than the exercise price during the term of the Warrants.  The Warrants can also be adjusted due to
future equity offerings undertaken by the Company with exercise pricing set at the then-current market price of the
related shares or the contractual terms of other equity-linked financial instruments issued in a subsequent
period.  Accordingly, equity treatment is not allowed and the Warrants are classified as a derivative liability and
re-measured at fair value at each reporting period. The Company valued the Warrants using a lattice option pricing
model that utilizes various assumptions.

The $3.5 million change in fair value of the common stock warrant liability during the nine months ended September
30, 2011 is primarily attributable to a decrease in the underlying market price of the Company’s common stock and a
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reduction in the remaining contractual term of the Warrants.  Partially offsetting the decrease in estimated fair value of
the common stock warrant liability was a decrease in exercise price associated with the ratchet anti-dilution protection
provision resulting from the issuance of restricted stock to directors during the second quarter of 2011 and the
issuance of Signature common stock to the former NABCO shareholders, as part of the purchase consideration for the
NABCO Acquisition during the third quarter of 2011, at prices below the then current exercise price.  However, the
holders of approximately 79% of the Warrants, including Signature Group Holdings, LLC and Kenneth Grossman,
waived the anti-dilution protection provisions related to the shares issued as part of the NABCO transaction as it
applied to them.  As a result, the holders of only 21% of the Warrants received the benefit of these anti-dilution
protections upon the issuance of new shares of Signature common stock to the former owners of NABCO that resulted
in a reduction in their Warrants’ exercise price from $0.69 to $0.66 per share.
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Assets and liabilities of discontinued operations
Assets of discontinued operations decreased to $45.5 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to $57.3 million at
December 31, 2010.  Liabilities of discontinued operations decreased to $13.7 million at September 30, 2011 as
compared to $15.1 million at December 31, 2010.  See “Review of Operating Segments Financial Condition -
Discontinued Operations” below.

REVIEW OF OPERATING SEGMENTS RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following tables present revenues, expenses, net earnings (loss) and other key financial measures from our
operating segments for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.  We have four primary operating
segments: Special Situation Lending, Strategic Acquisitions – Distribution, Strategic Acquisitions – Consumer Products
and Discontinued Operations.  Results of operations and other financial measures that are not included in our four
primary operating segments are included in Corporate and Other in the tables below.

Three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2010

Continuing Operations
Strategic

Acquisitions

(Dollars in
thousands)

Special
Situation
Lending Distribution

Consumer
Products

Corporate
and
Other Eliminations Total

Discontinued
Operations Total

Three months ended
September 30, 2011:
Net sales $- $6,082 $ 227 $ - $ - $6,309 $ - $6,309
Interest 548 - - 49 (294 ) 303 1,171 1,474
Gain on loans held
for sale - - - - - - 626 626
Other, net - - - - - - (56 ) (56 )
Total revenues 548 6,082 227 49 (294 ) 6,612 1,741 8,353

Cost of goods sold - 3,530 242 - - 3,772 - 3,772
Selling, general and
administrative 2 240 77 1,198 - 1,517 184 1,701
Interest - 310 59 877 (294 ) 952 - 952
Amortization of
intangibles - 571 78 - - 649 - 649
Compensation - 366 145 1,443 - 1,954 21 1,975
Professional fees - 222 16 1,707 - 1,945 2,296 4,241
Total expenses 2 5,239 617 5,225 (294 ) 10,789 2,501 13,290
Other income
(expense) 71 (47 ) - 4,191 - 4,215 - 4,215
Earnings (loss)
before reorganization
items, net and
income taxes 617 796 (390 ) (985 ) - 38 (760 ) (722 )
Reorganization
items, net - - - 63 - 63 - 63

617 796 (390 ) (1,048 ) - (25 ) (760 ) (785 )
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Earnings (loss)
before income taxes
and loss attributable
to noncontrolling
interest
Income tax expense
(benefit) 54 317 - (3,021 ) - (2,650 ) 621 (2,029 )
Net earnings (loss)
attributable to
Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. 563 479 (390 ) 1,973 - 2,625 (1,381 ) 1,244
Loss attributable to
noncontrolling
interest - - (31 ) - - (31 ) - (31 )
Net earnings (loss)
attributable to
Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. $563 $479 $ (359 ) $ 1,973 $ - $2,656 $ (1,381 ) $1,275
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Continuing Operations
Strategic

Acquisitions

(Dollars in
thousands)

Special
Situation
Lending Distribution

Consumer
Products

Corporate
and Other Eliminations Total

Discontinued
Operations Total

Three months ended
September 30, 2010:
Interest $ 53 $ - $ - $ 9 $ - $ 62 $ 1,034 $ 1,096
Loss on loans held
for sale - - - - - - (2,173 ) (2,173 )
Other, net - - - - - - (984 ) (984 )
Total revenues 53 - - 9 - 62 (2,123 ) (2,061 )

Selling, general
and administrative - - - 876 - 876 752 1,628
Interest - - - 892 - 892 - 892
Compensation - - - 478 - 478 1,676 2,154
Professional fees - - - 781 - 781 1,475 2,256
Total expenses - - - 3,027 - 3,027 3,903 6,930

Other income
(expense) - - - 249 - 249 - 249
Earnings (loss)
before
reorganization
items, net and
income taxes 53 - - (2,769 ) - (2,716 ) (6,026 ) (8,742 )
Reorganization
items, net - - - 794 - 794 - 794
Earnings (loss)
before income
taxes 53 - - (3,563 ) - (3,510 ) (6,026 ) (9,536 )
Income tax
expense - - - - - - - -
Net earnings
(loss) $ 53 $ - $ - $ (3,563 ) $ - $ (3,510 ) $ (6,026 ) $ (9,536 )

Special Situation Lending

At September 30, 2011, our Special Situation Lending business line had $18.8 million in total assets.  During the nine
months ended September 30, 2011, we purchased corporate bonds with $5.7 million in par value for $4.7 million and
$8.4 million in senior secured debt for $4.3 million.  We also funded an additional $2.2 million, net of repayments
under a revolving line of credit associated with the purchased senior secured debt.  Additionally, we had $5.0 million
in intercompany notes receivable to our Strategic Acquisitions – Distribution and Consumer Products segments.

The acquired corporate bonds have contractual interest rates ranging from 10% to 13% with maturities of less than
five years from the date of purchase.  The corporate bonds were purchased at discounts.  The discounts are amortized
to interest income using the effective yield method.
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The acquired senior secured debt consists of a performing revolving line of credit and a credit-impaired term
loan.  The revolving line of credit has a variable interest rate based upon the prime rate plus 2.50% which was
equivalent to 5.75% at September 30, 2011.  The estimated cash flow in excess of our initial investment in the term
loan is considered accretable yield and is recognized in interest income over the expected life of the loans using the
effective yield method.

Intercompany notes receivable have interest rates ranging from 10% to 12%.

Revenues related to the Special Situation Lending business line totaled $0.5 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to $53 thousand for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in
revenues relates to $0.2 million in interest income associated with the investments in corporate bonds and senior
secured debt.  In addition, revenues include $0.3 million in interest income related to the intercompany note issued to
NABCO during the third quarter of 2011.

Other income (expense) totaled $71 thousand for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to zero for
the three months ended September 30, 2010.  Other income of $71 thousand is attributable to a realized gain on a $2.0
million corporate bond that was called at par.

The activity in the Special Situation Lending business line has been funded with equity capital and non-interest
bearing intercompany payables.

Strategic Acquisitions

Distribution
On July 29, 2011, we completed the second transaction within our Strategic Acquisitions business line by acquiring
100% of the common stock of NABCO.  NABCO, headquartered in Burbank, California, is a nationwide quick-turn
supplier of circuit breakers that maintains a significant depth of certified, new product inventory used in various
commercial, industrial and residential applications, including products that have been discontinued by the
manufacturer and are no longer broadly available. NABCO operates from five distribution centers across the country
to offer customers quick and reliable nationwide delivery in the repair and replacement niche.  Historically, NABCO
has experienced seasonality in its business, with higher revenues occurring during the summer months when weather
patterns cause increased electrical usage.  Additionally, during the summer season, NABCO runs a sales promotion
event, which further drives a seasonal impact on its results of operations.  The operating results of NABCO are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.  The Company incurred direct costs related
to this acquisition aggregating approximately $0.2 million. These costs were recognized as selling, general and
administrative expenses in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations during the second and third quarters
of 2011.
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Revenues in the Distribution segment totaled $6.1 million for the period from July 29, 2011 (acquisition date) through
September 30, 2011.

Expenses in the Distribution segment totaled $5.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011.  The
expenses are primarily attributable to $3.5 million in cost of goods sold, $0.3 million in interest expense, $0.4 million
in compensation expense and $0.6 million in amortization of intangible assets.

Consumer Products
On February 18, 2011, we completed the first transaction within our Strategic Acquisitions business line by acquiring,
through our newly-formed subsidiary, Cosmed, certain assets and assuming certain liabilities of Costru for
consideration totaling $2.7 million.  Cosmed, which does business under the trade name CosmedicineTM, is
a branded, consumer products company.  Cosmed manufactures a line of skin care products for women, which is
available in retail stores across the country.  Signature currently owns 92% of the outstanding common stock of
Cosmed, with the remaining 8% held by the former owners of Costru.  The operating results of Cosmed are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.  The Company incurred direct costs related to this
acquisition aggregating approximately $72 thousand. These costs were recognized as selling, general and
administrative expenses in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations during the first quarter of 2011.

Revenues in the Consumer Products segment totaled $0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011
attributable to net sales from Cosmed.

Expenses in the Consumer Products segment totaled $0.6 million for the three months ended September 30,
2011.  The expenses are primarily attributable to $0.2 million in cost of goods sold, $0.1 million in compensation
expense, $77 thousand in selling, general and administrative expenses and $78 thousand in amortization of
intangibles.

Corporate and Other

Amounts included in “Corporate and Other” do not meet the definition of a segment, but include interest income,
corporate overhead costs, interest expense and other income (expense) that are not allocated to our operating
segments.

General
Income from corporate and other operations increased $5.7 million to $2.1 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to a loss of $3.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The
increase is primarily related to a $4.5 million increase in other income, a $2.7 million increase in income tax benefit,
and a $0.7 million decrease in reorganizations items, net, partially offset by a $2.2 million increase in expenses.

Expenses
Total expenses increased $2.2 million to $5.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to
$3.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase is primarily related to a $1.0 million
increase in compensation expense, $0.9 million increase in professional fees and a $0.3 million increase in selling,
general and administrative expenses.

Selling, general and administrative
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $0.3 million to $1.2 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to $0.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase is
primarily related to a $0.2 million increase in information technology expense and $0.1 million increase in other
expenses.  The increase in information technology expense and other expense is primarily attributable to costs
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Compensation
Compensation expense increased $1.0 million to $1.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to $0.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in compensation is primarily
related to the transfer of all of the employees of Signature Capital Advisers, LLC (“SCA”) to Signature Group Holdings,
Inc. as part of the Company’s decision to terminate the Interim Investment Management Agreement dated June 11,
2010 (the “Interim Management Agreement”), by and between the Company and SCA, effective July 31, 2011.  As a
result, the Company incurred an increase of $0.7 million in salaries and benefits from the increase in its employee
headcount and the management agreements entered into with its executive officers.  Additionally, the increase in
compensation expense is due to $0.3 million in share-based compensation expense associated with share-based awards
which include restricted stock and stock options.

Professional fees
Professional fees increased $0.9 million to $1.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared
to $0.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase is primarily related to increased legal,
consulting and transaction costs, including corporate legal matters, the preparation of the Company's delinquent
Exchange Act filings and due diligence and other transaction costs related to its lending and acquisition activities.

Other income (expense)
Other income (expense) increased $4.5 million to $4.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to $0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase is primarily related to a $2.8
million change in fair value of common stock warrant liability and a $1.4 million gain on sale of premises.

The change in fair value of the common stock warrant liability during the three months ended September 30, 2011
was primarily attributable to a decrease in the underlying market price of the Company’s common stock, partially
offset by a decrease in exercise price of the Warrants associated with the ratchet anti-dilution protection provision
resulting from the issuance of Signature common stock to the former NABCO shareholders, at prices below the then
current exercise price.  However, the holders of approximately 79% of the Warrants, including Signature Group
Holdings, LLC and Kenneth Grossman, waived the anti-dilution protection provisions related to the shares issued as
part of the NABCO transaction as it applied to them.  As a result, the holders of only 21% of the Warrants received
the benefit of these anti-dilution protections upon the issuance of new shares of Signature common stock to the former
NABCO shareholders.  The Warrants are classified as a derivative liability and re-measured at fair value each
reporting period using a lattice option pricing model.

The gain on sale of premises during the three months ended September 30, 2011 is due to the sale of the Company’s
Anaheim Hills, California facility and related land for net proceeds totaling $3.8 million.  The sale resulted in a gain
of $1.4 million.

Reorganization items, net

Reorganization items, net decreased $0.7 million to $63 thousand for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to $0.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease resulted from a reduction in
professional and legal fees associated with the bankruptcy.

Reorganization items, net represent expense or income items that were incurred or realized by the Company as a result
of the bankruptcy. These items include professional fees, trustee fees and other expenses directly related to the
bankruptcy filing, gains or losses resulting from activities of the reorganization process offset by interest income
earned on cash accumulated by Fremont while in bankruptcy.

Income taxes
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Income tax benefit increased to $2.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to zero for
the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The income tax benefit is attributable to a decrease in the Company’s
valuation allowance on deferred tax assets as a result of the deferred tax liabilities recognized in connection with the
NABCO Acquisition.

Discontinued Operations

The discontinued operations present the financial condition and results of operations for the assets, liabilities,
businesses and operations that were sold or discontinued by Fremont prior to the Effective Date.  In accordance with
FASB ASC 205-20,  Presentation of Financial Statements – Discontinued Operations, loss after taxes from
discontinued operations and the net loss on disposal of discontinued operations are reported in the consolidated
statements of operations after income from continuing operations for all periods presented.
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General
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes decreased $4.6 million to a loss of $1.4 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to a loss of $6.0 million for the three months ended September 30,
2010.  The decrease is primarily related to a $3.9 million increase in revenues and a $1.4 million decrease in expenses,
partially offset by a $0.6 million increase in income tax expense.

Revenues
Revenues increased $3.9 million to $1.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to ($2.1)
million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in revenue is primarily related to a $2.8 million
increase in gain on loans held for sale and a $0.9 million increase in other, net.

Gain (loss) on loans held for sale
Gain (loss) on loans held for sale increased $2.8 million to a gain of $0.6 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to a loss of $2.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The $0.6
million gain for the three months ended September 30, 2011 is due to a reduction in valuation allowance for loans held
for sale attributable to a decrease in non-accrual loans, borrower pay-offs and principal payments and gains related to
net realizable value of REO in excess of the carrying value of loans held for sale at the date of foreclosure and transfer
to REO. The $2.2 million loss on loans held for sale for the three months ended September 30, 2010 is primarily
related to lower of cost or market write-downs associated with an increase in loss severities on residential real estate
loans during the period.

Other, net
Other, net revenues increased $0.9 million to ($56) thousand for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to ($1.0) million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in other, net revenues is
primarily due to a $0.9 million decrease in losses on REO and $0.2 million in cash flows received on previously
impaired investment securities.

The decrease in REO losses is primarily due to a $0.5 million decrease in additional impairment write-downs
subsequent to foreclosure and a $0.4 million decrease in REO expenses during the three months ended September 30,
2011 as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease in additional impairment write-downs
subsequent to foreclosure is due to a reduction in the number of REO properties and a decrease in number of
properties requiring impairment write-downs during the quarter.  The decrease in REO expense is associated with
decreased levels of REO properties during the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the three
months ended September 30, 2010.

Expenses
Expenses decreased $1.4 million to $2.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $3.9
million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease in expenses is primarily related to a $1.7
million reduction in compensation expense and a $0.6 million decrease in selling, general and administrative
expenses, partially offset by a $0.8 million increase in professional fees.

Selling, general and administrative
Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $0.6 million to $0.2 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to $0.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease is
primarily related to a $0.2 million decrease in information technology expense, a $0.2 million decrease in other loan
related expenses and a $0.1 million decrease in occupancy expense.  The decrease in information technology expenses
and occupancy expense is due to reductions in personnel, office space and operating activities associated with
discontinued operations.  The decrease in other loan related expenses were due to reductions in servicing fees,
servicing advances and other expenses associated with the discontinued residential real estate loans held for sale
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portfolio during the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the three months ended September 30,
2010.

Compensation
Compensation expense decreased $1.7 million to $21 thousand for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to $1.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease in compensation is primarily
related to reductions in personnel associated with previously disposed businesses and reduced operations related to
other discontinued business activities.
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Professional fees
Professional fees increased $0.8 million to $2.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as compared
to $1.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in professional fees was primarily
related to litigation costs associated with the former insurance, banking and residential lending divisions, including
prosecution of legal matters where Signature is the plaintiff.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense increased $0.6 million to $0.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to zero for the three months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in income tax expense for the three
months ended September 30, 2011 is attributable to increases in taxable income associated with previous deferred tax
liabilities that have generated current taxable income, primarily in California.  Based on California’s temporary
suspension of the use of net operating loss carryforwards, the current taxable income results in a current period
obligation.  Additionally, for federal purposes, the Company is subject to alternative minimum taxes, which limit the
utilization of net operating loss carryforwards to 90% of taxable income.

Nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2010

Continuing Operations

(Dollars in
thousands)

Special
Situation
Lending Distribution

Consumer
Products

Corporate
and
Other Eliminations Total

Discontinued
Operations Total

Nine months ended September
30, 2011:
Net sales $- $ 6,082 $ 1,067 $ - $ - $7,149 $ - $7,149
Interest 953 - - 117 (339 ) 731 3,454 4,185
Gain on loans held
for sale - - - - - - 1,279 1,279
Other, net - - - - - - 190 190
Total revenues 953 6,082 1,067 117 (339 ) 7,880 4,923 12,803

Cost of goods sold - 3,530 763 - - 4,293 - 4,293
Selling, general and
administrative 2 240 693 3,211 - 4,146 1,734 5,880
Interest - 310 143 2,632 (339 ) 2,746 - 2,746
Amortization of
intangibles - 571 181 - - 752 - 752
Compensation - 366 366 2,264 - 2,996 977 3,973
Professional fees - 222 78 4,180 - 4,480 5,359 9,839
Total expenses 2 5,239 2,224 12,287 (339 ) 19,413 8,070 27,483
Other income
(expense) 71 (47 ) 281 4,864 - 5,169 - 5,169
Earnings (loss)
before
reorganization
items, net and
income taxes 1,022 796 (876 ) (7,306 ) - (6,364 ) (3,147 ) (9,511 )
Reorganization
items, net - - - 1,388 - 1,388 - 1,388

1,022 796 (876 ) (8,694 ) - (7,752 ) (3,147 ) (10,899 )
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Earnings (loss)
before income taxes
and loss attributable
to noncontrolling
interest
Income tax expense
(benefit) 60 317 - (3,139 ) - (2,762 ) 1,048 (1,714 )
Net earnings (loss) 962 479 (876 ) (5,555 ) - (4,990 ) (4,195 ) (9,185 )
Loss attributable to
noncontrolling
interest - - (93 ) - - (93 ) - (93 )
Net earnings (loss)
attributable to
Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. $962 $ 479 $ (783 ) $ (5,555 ) $ - $(4,897 ) $ (4,195 ) $(9,092 )

Continuing Operations

(Dollars in
thousands)

Special
Situation
Lending Distribution

Consumer
Products

Corporate
and Other Eliminations Total

Discontinued
Operations Total

Nine months ended September
30, 2010:
Interest $115 $ - $ - $ 122 $ - $237 $ 3,319 $3,556
Gain on loans held
for sale - - - - - - 2,290 2,290
Other, net - - - - - - (1,990 ) (1,990 )
Total revenues 115 - - 122 - 237 3,619 3,856

Selling, general and
administrative 38 - - 3,164 - 3,202 6,615 9,817
Interest - - - 3,189 - 3,189 - 3,189
Compensation - - - 1,403 - 1,403 4,798 6,201
Professional fees - - - 1,325 - 1,325 3,964 5,289
Total expenses 38 - - 9,081 - 9,119 15,377 24,496
Other income
(expense) - - - 514 - 514 - 514
Earnings (loss)
before reorganization
items, net and
income taxes 77 - - (8,445 ) - (8,368 ) (11,758 ) (20,126 )
Reorganization
items, net - - - 10,844 - 10,844 394 11,238
Earnings (loss)
before income taxes 77 - - (19,289 ) - (19,212 ) (12,152 ) (31,364 )
Income tax expense - - - - - - 150 150
Net earnings (loss) $77 $ - $ - $ (19,289 ) $ - $(19,212 ) $ (12,302 ) $(31,514 )
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Special Situation Lending

Revenues related to the Special Situation Lending business line totaled $1.0 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to $0.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The revenues
primarily relate to interest income associated with the investments in corporate bonds and senior secured debt.  In
addition, revenues include $0.3 million in interest income primarily related to an intercompany note issued to NABCO
during the third quarter of 2011 to partially fund the NABCO Acquisition or for working capital purposes.

Expenses related to the Special Situation Lending business line totaled $2 thousand for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to $38 thousand for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The expenses for
the nine months ended September 30, 2010 related to provision for loan losses associated with the commercial real
estate loan portfolio.

The activity in the Special Situation Lending business line has been funded with equity capital and non-interest
bearing intercompany payables.

Strategic Acquisitions

Distribution
Revenues in the Strategic Acquisitions – Distribution segment totaled $6.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011. The revenues are attributable to net sales from NABCO from July 29, 2011 (acquisition date)
through September 30, 2011.  There were no revenues associated with the Strategic Acquisitions – Distribution
segment for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.

Expenses in the Strategic Acquisitions – Distribution segment totaled $5.2 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011.  The expenses are attributable to NABCO from July 29, 2011 through September 30, 2011.  The
expenses primarily consist of $3.5 million in cost of goods sold, $0.3 million in interest expense, $0.4 million in
compensation expense and $0.6 million in amortization of intangible assets.  There were no expenses associated with
the Strategic Acquisitions – Distribution segment for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.

Consumer Products
Revenues in the Strategic Acquisitions – Consumer Products segment totaled $1.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011.  The revenues are attributable to net sales from Cosmed from February 18, 2011 (date operations
commenced) through September 30, 2011.  There were no revenues associated with the Strategic Acquisitions –
Consumer Products segment for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.

Expenses in the Strategic Acquisitions – Consumer Products segment totaled $2.2 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011.  The expenses are attributable to $0.8 million in cost of goods sold, $0.7 million in selling,
general and administrative expenses, $0.4 million in compensation expense and $0.2 million in amortization of
intangibles.  The expenses are attributable to Cosmed from February 18, 2011 through September 30, 2011.  There
were no expenses associated with the Strategic Acquisitions – Consumer Products segment for the nine months ended
September 30, 2010.

Other income (expense) in the Strategic Acquisitions – Consumer Products segment totaled $0.3 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 related to a gain on acquisition resulting from the difference between the fair value
of net assets acquired and total purchase consideration of the Cosmed Acquisition.  There was no other income
(expense) associated with the Strategic Acquisitions – Consumer Products segment for the nine months ended
September 30, 2010.
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General
Loss from corporate and other operations decreased $13.9 million to a loss of $5.4 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to a loss of $19.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The
decrease is primarily related to a $4.9 million increase in other income, a $2.8 million increase in income tax benefit,
and a $9.5 million decrease in reorganizations items, net, partially offset by a $3.2 million increase in expenses.

Expenses
Total expenses increased $3.2 million to $12.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to
$9.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase is primarily related to a $2.9 million
increase in professional fees and a $0.9 million increase in compensation expense, partially offset by a $0.6 million
decrease in interest expense.
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Interest expense
Interest expense decreased $0.6 million to $2.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to
$3.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease in interest expense relates to the reduction
in long-term debt outstanding associated with the settlement with the holders of the Company’s previously outstanding
$166.5 million of 7.875% Senior Notes due 2009 (“Senior Notes”) and $100.0 million of 9% Trust Originated Preferred
Securities (“TOPrS”) on the Effective Date.  As part of the settlement, the Company issued $39.0 million in Notes
Payable bearing 9.0% annual interest and due in 2016.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, the
Company incurred $2.6 million in interest expense on the Notes Payable.  During the nine months ended September
30, 2010, the Company incurred $2.0 million in interest expense on the Senior Notes and $1.1 million in interest
expense on the Notes Payable.  During the bankruptcy period, the Senior Notes contractual interest rate was reduced
from 7.875% to the federal judgment rate of 2.51% from the Petition Date through the Effective Date, and the TOPrS
received no interest.

Compensation
Compensation expense increased $0.9 million to $2.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to $1.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in compensation is primarily
related to the transfers of all of the employees of SCA to the Company as part of the Company’s decision to terminate
the Interim Management Agreement.  As a result, the Company incurred an increase of $0.4 million in salaries and
benefits from the increase in employee headcount and the management agreements entered into with its executive
officers.  Additionally, the increase in compensation expense is due to $0.5 million in share-based compensation
expense associated with share-based awards which include restricted stock and stock options.

Professional fees
Professional fees increased $2.9 million to $4.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to
$1.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase is primarily related to increased legal,
consulting and transaction costs associated with corporate legal matters, the preparation of the Company's delinquent
Exchange Act filings and due diligence and other transaction costs related to lending and acquisition activities.

Other income (expense)
Other income (expense) increased $4.4 million to $4.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to $0.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase is primarily related to a $3.5
million change in fair value of common stock warrant liability and a $1.4 million gain on sale of premises.

The change in fair value of the common stock warrant liability during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was
primarily attributable to a decrease in the underlying market price of the Company’s common stock and a reduction in
the remaining contractual term of the Warrants. Partially offsetting the decrease in estimated fair value of the common
stock warrant liability was a decrease in exercise price associated with the ratchet anti-dilution protection provisions
resulting from the issuance of restricted stock to directors during the second quarter of 2011 and the issuance of
Signature common stock to the former NABCO shareholders, as part of the purchase consideration for the NABCO
Acquisition during the third quarter of 2011, at prices below the then current exercise price.  However, approximately
79% of holders of the Warrants, including Signature Group Holdings, LLC and Kenneth Grossman, waived the
anti-dilution protection provisions related to the shares issued as part of the NABCO transaction as it applied to
them.  As a result, the holders of only 21% of the Warrants received the benefit of these anti-dilution protections upon
the issuance of new shares of Signature common stock to the former NABCO shareholders.  The Warrants are
classified as a derivative liability and re-measured at fair value each reporting period using a lattice option pricing
model.

The gain on sale of premises during the three months ended September 30, 2011 is due to the sale of the Company’s
Anaheim Hills, California facility and related land for net proceeds totaling $3.8 million.  The sale resulted in a gain
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Reorganization items, net
Reorganization items, net decreased $9.5 million to $1.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to $10.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease related to a reduction in
professional and legal fees associated with the bankruptcy.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2011,
professional and legal fees were primarily related to costs associated with bankruptcy professional fee
disputes.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2010, the Company incurred significant professional and legal
fees associated with the reorganization and exit from bankruptcy on June 11, 2010.

Income tax benefit
Income tax benefit increased to $3.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to zero for
the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The income tax benefit is primarily attributable to a decrease in the
Company’s valuation allowance on deferred tax assets related to recognizing deferred tax liabilities in connection with
the NABCO Acquisition and the acquisition of assets and assumption of certain liabilities of Costru.
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Discontinued Operations

General
Loss from discontinued operations decreased $8.1 million to a loss of $4.2 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to a loss of $12.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The
decrease in loss from discontinued operations is primarily related to a $7.3 million decrease in expenses, a $1.3
million increase in revenues and a $0.4 million decrease in reorganization items, net, partially offset by a $0.9 million
increase in income tax expense.

Revenues
Revenues increased $1.3 million to $4.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $3.6
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in revenue is primarily related to a $2.2 million
increase in other, net revenues and a $0.3 million increase in interest income, partially offset by a $1.0 million
decrease in gain on loans held for sale.

Gain on loans held for sale
Gain on loans held for sale decreased $1.0 million to a gain of $1.3 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2011 as compared to $2.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The $1.3 million gain for the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 is due to a reduction in valuation allowance for loans held for sale attributable to a
decrease in non-accrual loans and borrower pay-offs and principal payments and gains related to net realizable value
of REO in excess of the carrying value of loans held for sale at the date of foreclosure and transfer to REO.  The $2.3
million gain for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 is primarily related to a reversal of $2.1 million in
provision for valuation allowance for loans held for sale associated with increases in estimated fair value as a result of
declines in borrower delinquencies, borrower pay-offs and principal payments, partially offset by an increase in loss
severities on residential real estate loans during the period.

Other, net
Other, net revenues increased $2.2 million to $0.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared
to ($2.0) million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in other, net revenues is primarily due
to a $2.1 million decrease in losses on REO and a $0.2 million increase in gain on commercial real estate investments
and $0.3 million in cash flows received on previously impaired investment securities.

The decrease in REO losses is primarily due to a $1.0 million decrease in additional impairment write-downs
subsequent to foreclosure and a $1.3 million decrease in REO expenses, partially offset by a $0.3 million decrease in
gain on sale of REO during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2010.  The decrease in additional impairment write-downs subsequent to foreclosure is due to a
reduction in the number of REO properties and a decrease in the number of properties requiring impairment
write-downs during the nine months ended September 30, 2011.  The decrease in REO expense is associated with
decreased levels of REO properties during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2010. The decrease in REO losses were partially offset by a $0.2 million gain on sale of REO
during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to a $0.5 million gain on sale of REO for the nine
months ended September 30, 2010.

The increase in gain on commercial real estate investments of $0.2 million to $0.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to a loss of $0.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 is primarily
related to a $0.7 million gain on sale of commercial real estate investments, partially offset by a $0.5 million
impairment charge on commercial real estate investments during the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

Expenses
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Expenses decreased $7.3 million to $8.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $15.4
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease in expenses is primarily related to a $4.9 million
decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses and a $3.8 million reduction in compensation expense,
partially offset by a $1.4 million increase in professional fees.

Selling, general and administrative
Selling, general and administrative expense decreased $4.9 million to $1.7 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to $6.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease is
primarily related to a $3.5 million decrease in insurance expense and a $1.3 million decrease in litigation settlement
expense, partially offset by a $0.5 million increase in depreciation expense and a $0.3 million increase in other loan
related expenses.  Insurance expense decreased to zero for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to
$3.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease in insurance expense was primarily related
to the run-off of directors and officers, and fiduciary liability policies prior to the Effective Date.  Litigation settlement
expenses decreased to zero for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $1.3 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2010 as certain legal matters had been resolved.  Partially offsetting the decrease in
selling, general and administrative expenses was a $0.5 million increase in depreciation expense to $0.8 million for
the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $0.3 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2010.  The increase in depreciation expense was associated with changes in the estimated useful lives of the remaining
assets.  Additionally, other loan related expenses increased $0.3 million to $0.7 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to $0.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in
other loan related expenses were attributable to servicing advances and other expenses associated with the
discontinued residential real estate loans held for sale portfolio during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2010.
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Compensation
Compensation expense decreased $3.8 million to $1.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as
compared to $4.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The decrease in compensation expense is
primarily related to reductions in personnel associated with previously disposed businesses and reduced operations
related to other discontinued business activities.

Professional fees
Professional fees increased $1.4 million to $5.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to
$4.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in professional fees was primarily
associated with litigation costs associated with the former insurance, banking and residential lending divisions,
including prosecution of legal matters where Signature is the plaintiff.

Reorganization items, net
Reorganization items, net decreased $0.4 million to zero for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared
to $0.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The reorganization items, net for September 30, 2010
related to professional and legal fees associated with the bankruptcy.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense increased $0.9 million to $1.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared
to $0.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  The increase in income taxes is primarily attributable
to increases in taxable income associated with previous deferred tax liabilities that have generated current taxable
income and state income tax in California, based on the State’s temporary suspension of the use of net operating loss
carryforwards.  Additionally, for federal purposes, the Company is subject to alternative minimum taxes, which limit
the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards to 90% of taxable income.

REVIEW OF OPERATING SEGMENTS FINANCIAL CONDITION

The following tables present the assets and liabilities of our operating segments as of September 30, 2011 and
December 31, 2010.  The Corporate and Other segment does not meet the definition of a segment as it contains parent
company assets and liabilities that are not allocated to operating segments.
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Continuing Operations
Strategic Acquisitions

(Dollars in
thousands)

Special
Situation
Lending Distribution

Consumer
Products

Corporate
and Other Eliminations Total

Discontinued
Operations

September 30,
2011
Cash and cash
equivalents $404 $312 $314 $45,947 $ - $46,977 $ 117
Investment
securities,
available for sale 4,961 - - - - 4,961 -
Loans receivable,
net 8,216 - - - - 8,216 -
Trade and other
receivables, net - 4,699 168 130 - 4,997 -
Inventories - 7,367 1,210 - - 8,577 -
Goodwill - 18,381 - - - 18,381
Intangible assets,
net - 7,573 1,044 - - 8,617 -
Loans held for
sale, net - - - - - - 36,900
Commercial real
estate investments - - - - - - 327
Real estate
owned, net - - - - - - 3,867
Intercompany
receivable 5,047 14 - 8,397 (13,458 ) - -
Other assets 217 899 82 4,702 (3,025 ) 2,875 4,292
Total assets $18,845 $39,245 $2,818 $59,176 $ (16,483 ) $103,601 $ 45,503

Lines of credit $- $4,616 $64 $- $ - $4,680 $ -
Contingent
consideration - 3,525 - - - 3,525
Long-term debt - 13,000 - 39,000 - 52,000 -
Common stock
warrant liability - - - 2,224 - 2,224 -
Repurchase
reserve - - - - - - 8,873
Intercompany
payable 7,042 4,000 2,150 266 (13,458 ) - -
Accrued expenses
and other
liabilities 60 5,375 378 3,335 (3,025 ) 6,123 4,803
Total liabilities $7,102 $30,516 $2,592 $44,825 $ (16,483 ) $68,552 $ 13,676

Continuing Operations
Strategic Acquisitions

Distribution Corporate Eliminations Total Discontinued
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(Dollars in
thousands)

Special
Situation
Lending

Consumer
Products

and Other Operations

December 31,
2010
Cash and cash
equivalents $- $- $- $70,424 $ - $70,424 $ 568
Investment
securities,
available for sale 2,184 - - - - 2,184 -
Loans receivable,
net 1,967 - - - - 1,967 -
Trade and other
receivables, net - - - 198 - 198 -
Loans held for
sale, net - - - - - - 38,938
Commercial real
estate investments - - - - - - 5,484
Real estate
owned, net - - - - - - 7,003
Other assets 67 - - 3,443 - 3,510 5,268
Total assets $4,218 $- $- $74,065 $ - $78,283 $ 57,261

Long-term debt $- $- $- $39,000 $ - $39,000 $ -
Common stock
warrant liability - - - 5,700 - 5,700 -
Repurchase
reserve - - - - - - 8,873
Accrued expenses
and other
liabilities - - - 2,033 - 2,033 6,217
Total liabilities $- $- $- $46,733 $ - $46,733 $ 15,090

Special Situation Lending

At September 30, 2011, our Special Situation Lending business line had $18.8 million in total assets and $7.1 million
in total liabilities compared to $4.2 million in total assets and zero liabilities at December 31, 2010.

Investment securities, available for sale
Investment securities, available for sale increased $2.8 million to $5.0 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to
$2.2 million at December 31, 2010.  The $2.8 million increase is due to the purchase of corporate bonds with $5.7
million in par value for $4.7 million, partially offset by a $1.9 million decrease in corporate bonds related to a $2.0
million bond that was called at par during the three months ended September 30, 2011 and the Company realized a
$71 thousand gain.  Investment securities, available for sale totaled $5.0 million and are net of $69 thousand in
unrealized losses at September 30, 2011. At September 30, 2011, corporate bonds included one security with a $3.0
million par value, a coupon of 11.25% per annum and a maturity of March 2015, purchased for $2.7
million. Additionally, corporate bonds include two securities, from the same obligor, with an aggregate par value of
$2.7 million, coupons of 13.00% per annum and maturity dates of October 2014, purchased for $2.0 million.  At
December 31, 2010, corporate bonds included one security with a par value of $2.0 million, a coupon of 10.00% per
annum and a maturity of March 2012.
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Loans receivable, net
Loans receivable, net increased $6.2 million to $8.2 million at September 30, 2011 from $2.0 million at December 31,
2010.    During the first quarter of 2011, our wholly-owned subsidiary, Signature Credit Partners, Inc., acquired $8.4
million in senior secured debt of a manufacturing company that specializes in retail store fixtures and merchandise
displays for $4.3 million.  The senior secured debt consists of a performing revolving line of credit and a
credit-impaired term loan.  Subsequent to the purchase of senior secured debt, the Company funded an additional $2.2
million on the revolving line of credit, net of repayments.  Additionally, the Company received $0.4 million in
principal payments and recognized $0.2 million in accretable yield on the term loan subsequent to the acquisition.  At
September 30, 2011, the carrying amount of the revolving line of credit and term loan was $5.3 million and $1.0
million, respectively.

Additionally, loans receivable, net includes commercial real estate loans consisting of a participation interest in a pool
of adjustable rate multi-family mortgage loans.  Commercial real estate loans declined $0.1 million to $1.9 million at
September 30, 2011 as compared to $2.0 million at December 31, 2010.  The decrease is primarily related to principal
payments received.  As of September 30, 2011, non-accrual loans totaled $38 thousand or 2.0% of unpaid principal
balance as compared to $38 thousand or 1.9% at December 31, 2010.  The weighted average yield on these loans,
representing annualized interest income as a percentage of the aggregate portfolio’s unpaid principal balance (“UPB”)
was 5.74% at September 30, 2011 as compared to 5.68% at December 31, 2010.

Intercompany receivable
Intercompany receivables totaled $5.0 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to zero at December 31, 2011.  The
balance primarily relates to a $4.0 million intercompany note due from NABCO at 10% interest per annum and a $0.8
million intercompany note due from Cosmed at 12% per annum.  The intercompany notes are eliminated in
consolidation in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Strategic Acquisitions

Distribution
On July 29, 2011, we completed the second transaction within our Strategic Acquisitions business line by acquiring
100% of the common stock of NABCO.  NABCO, headquartered in Burbank, California, is a nationwide quick-turn
supplier of circuit breakers that maintains a significant depth of certified, new product inventory used in various
commercial, industrial and residential applications, including products that have been discontinued by the
manufacturer and are no longer broadly available. NABCO operates from five distribution centers across the country
to offer customers quick and reliable nationwide delivery in the repair and replacement niche.

At September 30, 2011, our Strategic Acquisitions - Distribution segment had $39.2 million in total assets and $30.5
million in total liabilities.  Assets primarily include $4.7 million in trade and other receivables, $7.4 million in
inventory, $18.4 million in goodwill, $7.6 million in intangible assets, net and $0.9 million in other assets.   Liabilities
primarily include a $4.6 million line of credit, $13.0 million in long-term debt, $3.5 million in contingent
consideration, $4.0 million in intercompany payables and $5.4 million in other liabilities.  Long-term debt includes the
$8.0 million Term Loan and $5.0 million in Seller Notes.  The intercompany payables relate to an intercompany note
due an affiliate.  The intercompany payable is eliminated in consolidation in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets.  Other liabilities primarily include $2.7 million in deferred income taxes for temporary differences between the
book and tax bases of the acquired identifiable assets and assumed liabilities from the NABCO Acquisition as well as
accrued trade payables and other accrued expenses.  Deferred tax liabilities at individual segments are eliminated in
segment consolidation, given the full valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets in the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet at September 30, 2011.

Consumer Products
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On February 18, 2011, we completed the first transaction within our Strategic Acquisitions business line when we
acquired, through our newly-formed subsidiary, Cosmed, certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Costru for
consideration totaling $2.7 million.  Cosmed, which does business under the trade name CosmedicineTM,
manufactures a line of skin care products for women, which is available in retail stores across the country.  Signature
currently owns 92% of the outstanding stock of Cosmed, with the remaining 8% held by the former owners of Costru.
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At September 30, 2011, our Consumer Products segment had $2.8 million in total assets and $2.6 million in total
liabilities.  Assets primarily include $1.2 million in inventory and $1.0 million in intangible assets, net.  Liabilities
primarily include $2.2 million in intercompany payables and $0.4 million in other liabilities.  The intercompany
payable is eliminated in consolidation in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Corporate and Other

At September 30, 2011, Corporate and Other had $60.0 million in total assets and $44.8 million in total liabilities
compared to $74.0 million in total assets and $46.7 million in total liabilities at December 31, 2010.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents decreased $24.5 million to $45.9 million at September 30, 2011 from $70.4 million at
December 31, 2010 primarily due to capital deployment in our two primary business lines and payment of
expenses.  The Company paid $23.4 million in cash consideration for the NABCO Acquisition, $6.3 million to
purchase and fund senior secured debt and $4.7 million to purchase investment securities, available for
sale.  Additionally, the Company paid $1.0 million in connection with the Cosmed Acquisition.  The decrease in cash
and cash equivalents was also due to the payment of expenses associated with the $9.2 million net loss for the nine
months ended September 30, 2011.  The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was partially offset by $12.5 million in
borrowings associated with the NABCO Financing.  Additionally, the Company received $3.8 million in net proceeds
from the sale of its Anaheim Hills, California facility and related land, $2.0 million in proceeds from a corporate bond
called at par, $4.6 million in proceeds received from the sale of commercial real estate investments and $4.2 million in
proceeds received from the sale of real estate owned, net, within the assets of discontinued operations.

Intercompany receivable
Intercompany receivable increased to $8.4 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to zero at December 31,
2010.  The intercompany receivable primarily consists of intercompany notes issued to the Special Situation Lending
and Consumer Products segments.  The intercompany receivables are eliminated in consolidation in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets.

Other assets
Other assets increased to $4.7 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to $3.4 million at December 31, 2010.  The
increase in other assets is primarily due to a $2.8 million decrease in the Company’s valuation allowance on deferred
tax assets related to recognizing deferred tax liabilities in connection with the NABCO Acquisition and the acquisition
of assets and assumption of certain liabilities of Costru. Deferred tax assets and liabilities at individual segments are
eliminated in segment consolidation. Additionally, prepaid expenses and income taxes receivable increased $0.6
million.  Partially offsetting the increase in other assets was a $2.3 million decrease in premises and equipment, net
related to the sale of the Company’s Anaheim Hills, California facility and related land during the third quarter of
2011.

Common stock warrant liability
Common stock warrant liability decreased $3.5 million to $2.2 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to $5.7
million at December 31, 2010.  The $3.5 million change in fair value of the common stock warrant liability during the
nine months ended September 30, 2011 is primarily attributable to a decrease in the underlying market price of the
Company’s common stock and a reduction in the remaining contractual term of the Warrants.  Partially offsetting the
decrease in estimated fair value of the common stock warrant liability was a decrease in exercise price associated with
the ratchet anti-dilution protection provision resulting from the issuance of restricted stock to directors during the
second quarter of 2011 and the issuance of Signature common stock to the former NABCO shareholders, as part of the
purchase consideration for the NABCO Acquisition during the third quarter of 2011, at prices below the then current
exercise price.  This resulted in a reduction in the Warrant exercise price from $0.69 to $0.66 per share.  However,
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approximately 79% of holders of the Warrants, including Signature Group Holdings, LLC and Kenneth Grossman,
waived the anti-dilution protection provisions related to the shares issued as part of the NABCO transaction as it
applied to them.  As a result, the holders of 21% of the Warrants received the benefit of these anti-dilution protections
upon the issuance of new shares of Signature common stock to the former owners of NABCO.  The Warrants are
classified as a derivative liability and re-measured at fair value each reporting period using a lattice option pricing
model.

Other liabilities
Other liabilities increased to $3.3 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to $2.0 million at December 31,
2010.  The increase in other liabilities is primarily due to an increase in accrued trade payables and other accrued
liabilities associated with increased operating activities.
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Discontinued Operations

At September 30, 2011, our Discontinued Operations segment had $45.5 million in total assets and $13.7 million in
total liabilities as compared to $57.3 million in total assets and $15.1 million in total liabilities at December 31, 2010.

Loans held for sale, net
Loans held for sale, net primarily consists of first lien subprime residential mortgage loans originated by Fremont in
periods prior to March 31, 2007.  Loans held for sale, net are carried at $36.9 million, consisting of $99.0 million in
UPB and a $62.3 million valuation allowance, or 37.3% of UPB at September 30, 2011 as compared to $38.9 million,
consisting of $106.6 million in UPB and a $67.8 million valuation allowance, or 36.5% of UPB at December 31,
2010.   The decrease is primarily related to $1.4 million in net transfers of loans held for sale to REO as a result of
foreclosures and $1.7 million in borrower pay-offs and principal payments, partially offset by $1.0 million in
reductions to the valuation allowance. There were no loans sold during the nine months ended September 30, 2011
and the year ended December 31, 2010.

The valuation allowance decreased $5.6 million to $62.3 million at September 30, 2011 from $67.8 million at
December 31, 2010.  The decrease in valuation allowance was primarily related to reductions in valuation allowance
attributable to borrower pay-offs and principal payments from loans held for sale and charge-offs from loans
transferred to REO at time of foreclosure.

As of September 30, 2011, non-accrual residential real estate loans totaled $47.7 million, or 48.2% of UPB, as
compared to $56.6 million, or 53.1% of UPB, at December 31, 2010.  The weighted average yield on residential real
estate loans held for sale, representing annualized interest income as a percentage of the aggregate portfolio’s average
UPB, was 4.40% at September 30, 2011 as compared to 4.15% at December 31, 2010.

Commercial real estate investments
Commercial real estate investments decreased $5.2 million to $0.3 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to $5.5
million at December 31, 2010.  The decrease is primarily related to $4.0 million in sales of commercial real estate
investments, resulting in a gain of $0.7 million, $0.9 million in principal collections and $0.5 million in impairment
charges.  Partially offsetting the decrease was $0.2 million in capital contributions.

Real estate owned, net (REO)
REO includes residential property acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure and is recorded at fair
value less estimated costs to sell (“net realizable value”) at acquisition date.   REO totaled $3.9 million, net of a
valuation allowance of $0.7 million, at September 30, 2011 as compared to $7.0 million, net of a valuation allowance
of $1.2 million, at December 31, 2010.  The $3.1 million decrease was primarily related to REO sales totaling
approximately $4.0 million and additional valuation write downs of $0.5 million during the nine months ended
September 30, 2011.  The decrease was partially offset by loans held for sale transferred to REO at net realizable
value of $1.4 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2011.   REO decreased to 26 properties at
September 30, 2011 as compared to 60 properties at December 31, 2010.

Other assets
Other assets decreased $1.0 million to $4.3 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to $5.3 million at December
31, 2010.  The decrease is primarily related to a $0.8 million reduction in property and equipment, net and a $0.2
million reduction in prepaid expenses.

Repurchase reserve
The Company’s repurchase reserve liability totaled $8.9 million at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.  This
liability represents estimated losses we may experience from repurchase claims, both known and unknown, based on
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the representations and warranties Fremont provided to counterparties that purchased the residential real estate loans
Fremont originated from 2002 through 2007.  In preparing its estimate for the repurchase reserve, management
considers the loan products, vintage, aging of repurchase claims, investor settlements and actual loss experience.

Outstanding claims totaled approximately $101.7 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to approximately $100.4
million at December 31, 2010.  New repurchase claim volume totaled $1.3 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to $22.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.

Other liabilities
Other liabilities decreased $1.4 million to $4.8 million at September 30, 2011 as compared to $6.2 million at
December 31, 2010.  The decrease is primarily due to a $2.4 million reduction in accrued trade payables and other
accrued expenses related to payments of previously accrued professional fees and a reduction in professional fees
during the nine months ended September 30, 2011.  The decrease was partially offset by a $1.0 million increase in
income taxes payable.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Sources and Uses of Liquidity

Signature’s preliminary sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents.  Additionally, Signature has alternative
sources of liquidity available to fund its business and operations, including, but not limited to funds generated from
implementing its new business strategy described below, borrowings from third-party lenders and debt and equity
offerings.

Signature operates in two primary business lines: (i) Special Situation Lending and (ii) Strategic
Acquisitions.  Sources of cash flows from Special Situation Lending include principal and interest collections from
senior secured and junior secured debt financing, as well as sales and collections of corporate bonds, trade claims, and
other structured debt instruments. Sources of cash flows from Strategic Acquisitions include operating cash flows
from operating businesses and borrowings from third-party lenders secured by the assets or cash flow of such
operating businesses.

Signature also has Legacy Assets related to Fremont’s prior businesses, which include a residential mortgage portfolio,
residential real estate, and certain other investments, including subordinated securities and residual interests resulting
from Fremont's prior residential real estate loan securitization activities, that generate income and liquidity from
principal and interest collections and proceeds from sales. These Legacy Assets are being managed to maximize
recoveries and value for shareholders and are expected to be redeployed into Signature’s business strategy over time.

Signature’s use of liquidity includes deployment of capital pursuant to its business strategy.  Within our Special
Situation Lending business line, we have purchased approximately $11.1 million in investment securities and loans
receivable from the Effective Date through September 30, 2011.  Our Special Situation Lending business line has
advanced $2.2 million, net of repayments of principal on a revolving line of credit.  Within our Strategic Acquisitions
business line, we completed two acquisitions during the nine months ended September 30, 2011.  In the first quarter of
2011, we completed the Cosmed Acquisition for total consideration of $2.6 million which included $1.0 million in
cash consideration.  In the third quarter of 2011, we completed the NABCO Acquisition for total consideration of 36.9
million which included $23.4 million in cash consideration.  As a result of the acquisitions, the Company recorded
acquisition related transaction costs of approximately $0.3 million during the nine months ended September 30,
2011.  Other uses of liquidity include operating expenses associated with the management of the Company’s business,
including the Legacy Assets, professional fees and related expenses associated with reorganization, litigation, and
interest payments on the Notes Payable.

The Company has received claims related to potential repurchase obligations associated with its prior subprime
residential lending business.  There were no settlements of outstanding repurchase claims during the nine months
ended September 30, 2011.  New repurchase claim volume totaled $1.3 million for the nine months ended September
30, 2011.  Outstanding claims totaled approximately $101.7 million at September 30, 2011.  Refer to Note 16 –
Discontinued Operations included in Item 1 of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for additional information regarding
the Company’s residential loan repurchase reserve.

Subsequent to the Cosmed Acquisition, Cosmed entered into a $3.0 million line of credit with a new creditor.  At
September 30, 2011, Cosmed was not in compliance with certain financial covenants and further advances on the line
of credit are not available.  At September 30, 2011, $64 thousand was outstanding on the line of credit. Signature has
provided working capital financing to Cosmed from the time advances were no longer available under the line of
credit. On September 30, 2011, NABCO completed a $16.0 million financing with a third-party lender, resulting in
$12.6 million in proceeds. Proceeds of the NABCO Financing were used to repay existing indebtedness of NABCO in
the amount of $12.5 million, which was due to the Company, as well as provide for the ongoing needs of NABCO’s
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business, including the payment of approximately $0.1 million in fees and expenses associated with the NABCO
Financing.  At September 30, 2011, NABCO had approximately $0.8 million in additional borrowing capacity under
this lending arrangement to finance its operations.

On September 28, 2011, the Company sold its Anaheim Hills, California facility and related land for net proceeds
totaling $3.8 million and recorded a gain of $1.4 million.
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On November 23, 2011, the Company completed a whole loan sale transaction of $9.0 million in non-performing
residential real estate loans held for sale for net proceeds totaling $2.3 million.

Summary of Cash Flows

Net cash used in operating activities
During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, net cash used in operating activities totaled $15.3 million. The
cash used in operating activities primarily relates to the payment of expenses associated with the $9.2 million net loss
during the period, adjusted for noncash income of $3.5 million related to the change in fair value of common stock
warrant liability, $0.3 million related to gain on acquisition and noncash charges related to amortization of
share-based compensation of $0.5 million, depreciation of $0.8 million and noncash recoveries related to lower of cost
or market adjustments on loans held for sale, net of $1.0 million.  The use of cash was partially offset by $1.7 million
in principal collections from loans held for sale, net.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2010, net cash used in operating activities totaled $320.3 million. The
cash used in operating activities primarily relates to payments aggregating approximately $280.8 million to satisfy
allowed claims on the Effective Date and $28.3 million paid to settle repurchase reserve matters during the weeks
leading up to the Effective Date.  Additionally, the $31.5 million net loss during the period contributed to the cash
used in operating activities.

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, net cash used in investing activities totaled $19.7 million. The
cash used in investing activities primarily relates to $24.2 million in cash used in the Cosmed Acquisition and
NABCO Acquisition, $4.3 million in purchases of loans receivable, $1.8 million in advances on loans receivable, net
of principal collected, and $4.7 million in purchases of investment securities, available for sale.  The cash used in
investing activities was partially offset by $2.0 million in proceeds received from a corporate bond called at par, $3.8
million in net proceeds from the sale of premises and related land, $4.6 million in proceeds received from the sale of
commercial real estate investments, $0.9 million in principal payments received from commercial real estate
investments and $4.2 million in proceeds received from the sale of REO.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2010, net cash provided by investing activities totaled $5.4 million. The
cash provided by investing activities primarily relates to proceeds of $6.8 million from the sale of REO, partially
offset by $2.2 million in purchases of investment securities, available for sale.

Net cash provided by financing activities
During the nine months ended September 30, 2011 net cash provided by financing activities totaled $11.2
million.  The cash provided by financing activities primarily relates to $12.6 million in proceeds received from
NABCO’s Revolving Loan and Term Loan, partially offset by $1.5 million in repayments, net of advances on
Cosmed’s lines of credit.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2010, net cash provided by financing activities totaled $10.1
million.  The cash provided by financing activities relates to $10.1 million in proceeds received from the issuance of
common stock and Warrants on the Effective Date.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The Company’s $39.0 million in Notes Payable bear interest at 9% per annum, payable quarterly starting in September
2010 and mature December 31, 2016.  There was no change in amounts due under the Notes Payable during the nine
months ended September 30, 2011.  Additional information on the Notes Payable is included in Note 8 – Debt of the
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Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

In February 2011, Cosmed entered into a $3.0 million line of credit to fund its operations.  Advances are based on a
percentage of eligible trade receivables and inventory.  The line of credit is due on demand and bears interest at the
Prime rate plus 2.25% with a floor rate of 6.00% per annum.  Interest and principal are due monthly in arrears on the
first day of the month.  Cosmed is required to maintain certain financial covenants and was not in compliance with all
such covenants at September 30, 2011.  At September 30, 2011, $64 thousand was outstanding on the line of
credit.  The Company is providing additional funds to Cosmed for operations.

In July 2011, pursuant to the NABCO Acquisition, NABCO issued $5.0 million in Seller Notes to the former NABCO
shareholders as part of the consideration paid for the NABCO Acquisition.  The Seller Notes mature on January 29,
2016 and are subject to scheduled quarterly principal payments of $0.2 million beginning December 2011.  In addition
to the scheduled quarterly principal payments, additional principal payments will be made, subject to NABCO
exceeding $6.0 million in annual earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) targets
beginning with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2011.  If NABCO exceeds the EBITDA targets, 25% of the
amount in excess of the EBITDA target is additional principal due the subsequent year to be paid quarterly beginning
in the first quarter.  The Seller Notes bear interest at 6.00% per annum and is paid quarterly beginning in the fourth
quarter of 2011.
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In September 2011, NABCO entered into a $16.0 million debt financing transaction with a third-party lender to repay
existing indebtedness of NABCO in the amount of $12.5 million, which was due to the Company, as well as provide
for the ongoing needs of NABCO’s business.  Pursuant to the debt financing transaction, NABCO borrowed $8.0
million under the Term Loan, which matures in September 2016 and is subject to annual principal payments of 10%
of the original principal amount of the Term Loan in year 1; 15% of the original principal amount of the Term Loan in
each of years 2 and 3; 20% of the original principal amount of the Term Loan in each of years 4 and 5; and a balloon
payment of any remaining principal balance due at maturity. Additionally, NABCO borrowed $4.6 million under the
$8.0 million Revolving Loan that matures in September 2014. Advances under the Revolving Loan are subject to a
borrowing base.  The Term Loan has a variable interest rate based upon the Lender’s Base Rate plus 1.00% per annum,
which is equivalent to 5.00% at September 30, 2011. The Revolving Loan has a variable interest rate based upon the
Lender’s Base Rate, which is equivalent to 4.00% at September 30, 2011.  NABCO is required to maintain compliance
with certain financial covenants beginning in the fourth quarter of 2011.  The Term Loan and Revolving Loan are
secured by all of NABCO’s assets.  The Company is not a borrower, an obligor, nor a guarantor under the loan
agreements.

Pursuant to the NABCO Acquisition, a $3.5 million estimated liability was recorded for contingent consideration. The
former NABCO shareholders may earn contingent consideration of up to $4.0 million, subject to the achievement of
certain EBITDA thresholds for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.  Potential earn outs range from $1.5 million
to $4.0 million based on achieving EBITDA thresholds from $6.7 million to $8.1 million, respectively.  Each
reporting period, the Company estimates the fair value of contingent consideration and any change in fair value is
recognized in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.

We also have repurchase reserve liabilities related to sales of residential real estate loans that are subject to standard
industry representations and warranties that may require the Company to repurchase certain loans. Additional
information concerning the repurchase reserve included in discontinued operations is included in Note 16 –
Discontinued Operations of the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of
this Form 10-Q.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks

Not applicable to smaller reporting companies.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Overview
Signature successfully emerged from bankruptcy proceedings on June 11, 2010 with a new Board of Directors, which
has an audit committee made up entirely of independent members of the Board of Directors. In July 2010, a new
senior management team was appointed. With the assistance of financial consultants, the new management team,
under the oversight of the audit committee, focused its resources on undertaking the project of completing all of
Signature’s delinquent Exchange Act periodic reports and the related financial statements as soon as practicable. With
the filing of this Form 10-Q, the Company is now current in its Exchange Act periodic reporting.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
An evaluation was carried out by our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and
Interim Chief Financial Officer (“Interim CFO”), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-Q. Based upon
that evaluation, the CEO and Interim CFO concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at a reasonable assurance level, due to the
identification of a material weakness, as discussed below and in more detail in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for
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Material Weakness
In connection with its assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010,
management identified a material weakness related to our effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.
The Company did not maintain, as of December 31, 2010, a sufficient number of financial and accounting staff
personnel with the appropriate level of accounting knowledge and experience in order to timely provide accurate and
reliable financial statements of the Company that were prepared and reviewed in accordance with GAAP.
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Ongoing Remediation of Material Weakness
The Company has devoted virtually all of its accounting resources to complete its delinquent filings under Section 13
or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, including preparing and filing the Comprehensive Form 10-K on May 17, 2011,
preparing and filing of the March 31, 2010, June 30, 2010 and September 30, 2010 Form 10-Qs, as well as its Annual
Report on Form 10-K for December 31, 2010 on July 5, 2011; and preparing and filing its March 31, 2011 and June
30, 2011 Form 10-Qs on September 29, 2011 and December 12, 2011, respectively.  As a result, the Company has not
had the resources available to address or remediate the material weakness in the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. In particular, management has not completed the installation of its internal control systems and
procedures that provide the necessary level of assurance regarding the accuracy of the Company’s financial
reporting.  However, the Company has taken the following steps during fiscal 2011 to attempt to remediate the
material weakness in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting:

-Management has developed, documented and adopted formal accounting and reporting policies with respect to all
significant transactions that are relevant to its business and necessary to properly account for and report our results
for the periods presented in this Form 10-Q. This includes policies regarding segment reporting, accounting for
reorganizations (accounting during bankruptcy), discontinued operations, adoption of new accounting policies,
accounting for mortgage related assets (such as loans held for sale), accounting for derivatives, accounting for
repurchase reserves, litigation reserves and business combinations.

- Management is strengthening its policies and procedures related to critical accounting policies, including
assets and liabilities that require management to make significant assumptions and estimates, such as fair
value measurements. Some of these procedures have been implemented as of the date of the filing of this
Form 10-Q.

-Management has been able to reorganize the accounting group and has recruited new, experienced accounting and
finance employees to oversee the accounting function on a going-forward basis. The Company continues to use
consultants in some areas, but these areas are limited and will be transitioned to full time employees in the near
future.

-Management is implementing a more timely review of business transactions. The accounting group will be involved
as the business transactions are contemplated and will provide timely accounting support and accounting policy
implementation as the transaction unfolds and is completed.  This will enable the Company to identify and
document issues related to the transactions and account for them in accordance with GAAP on a timely basis.

The Company’s remediation process is on-going and management hopes to complete the implementation of its
remediation efforts during mid-2012, with the expectation that the Company will have adequate internal control over
financial reporting and effective disclosure controls and procedures in 2012. However, since management has not
completed its remediation efforts, there can be no assurances that the Company’s remediation efforts will be successful
or sufficient in remediating the material weakness.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
In connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, other than the
remediation efforts noted above, there was no change identified in our internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2011 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are currently a defendant in various legal actions and asserted claims in connection with the prior business and
operations of Fremont and its subsidiaries and in the normal course of business. We anticipate that we will become
involved in new litigation matters from time to time in the future.  We will incur legal and related costs concerning
litigation and may, from time to time, determine to settle some or all of the cases, regardless of our assessment of its
legal position.  The amount of legal defense costs and settlements in any period will depend on many factors,
including the status of cases, the number of cases that are in trial or about to be brought to trial, and the opposing
parties’ aggressiveness in pursuing their cases and their perception of their legal position.  For additional information
concerning material pending and threatened litigation actions and proceedings against the Company, see Part I, Item 3.
Legal Proceedings in the Annual Report and Note 17 ― Commitments and Contingencies in the Notes to Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item1 of this Form 10-Q.

The Company experienced the following new developments with pending material legal proceedings during the third
quarter of 2011.

Final Approval of Settlement of the ERISA Class Action. From April through June of 2007, six complaints seeking
class certification were filed in the United States District Court for the Central District of California against the
Company and various officers, directors and employees by participants in the Company’s prior Investment Incentive
Plan, 401(k) and Employee Stock Ownership Plan (collectively “the Plans”) alleging violations of ERISA in connection
with Company stock held by the Plans. The six complaints were consolidated in a single proceeding. On April 15,
2010, the Court granted the Order for Class Certification under Rule 23(b)(3). On March 22, 2011, the Company
entered into a settlement stipulation whereby its insurance carriers will pay $21.0 million to settle the claims of the
certified class. On April 25, 2011, the Court granted preliminary approval of the settlement stipulation. On August 10,
2011, the Court entered the Final Order and Judgment approving the settlement.

Settlement of Whitesell and Stinson Matters. On November 13, 2007, Thomas Whitesell, the former Senior Vice
President of the Company’s former Commercial Real Estate (CRE) group, filed a complaint against the Company for
violations of various California labor codes, intentional misrepresentation, concealment, negligent misrepresentation,
false promises, breach of contract, conversion, breach of fiduciary duty, action for declaratory relief, unjust
enrichment – quasi-contractual recovery, gross negligence and action for specific performance (the “Whitesell Action”).
The complaint sought compensation for alleged unpaid cash bonuses and stock plan awards totaling $3.0 million. On
April 20, 2011, a similar action (the “Stinson Action”) was brought against the Company by other former employees of
the CRE Group, Steve Stinson, Brad R. Burton, Sophia Haliotis, Ronald James Claud, Lee Karny and Scott S. Manlin
(collectively with Mr. Whitesell, the “Whitesell Plaintiffs”). Each of the Whitesell Plaintiffs filed a Proof of Claim in the
Company’s bankruptcy proceeding for aggregate claims of $3.8 million.

On July 29, 2011, the Company entered into a settlement agreement and general release with the Whitesell Plaintiffs
pursuant to which the Company received executed dismissals, with prejudice, of all claims in the Whitesell Action and
the Stinson Action and the withdrawal of each related claim filed by the Whitesell Plaintiffs in the Company’s
bankruptcy proceeding. In exchange, the Company paid an aggregate settlement amount of $130,000 to the Whitesell
Plaintiffs and the Whitesell Plaintiffs each irrevocably and unconditionally released the Company and its affiliates
from all claims relating to the Whitesell Plaintiffs' working relationship with the Company or any of its predecessors
in interest.

Colburn Matters.  On December 8, 2009, Gwyneth Colburn, the former Executive Vice President of Fremont
Investment & Loan’s CRE group filed a complaint in the California Superior Court, County of Los Angeles, against
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Fremont Investment & Loan and unnamed defendants for breach of contract related to her Management Continuity
Agreement (“MCA”) executed in August 2003, and extended in August 2007. Ms. Colburn claims she is owed
approximately $2.0 million, 87,183 shares of restricted stock valued at $4.01 per share at the time of Plaintiff's
termination effective August 28, 2007 and the value of 36 months of welfare benefits. On August 9, 2011, the
California Superior Court entered judgment granting the Company’s Motion for Summary Judgment and dismissing
the complaint.  On September 22, 2011, Ms. Colburn filed a Notice of Appeal from this dismissal.

On June 10, 2011, Gwyneth Colburn filed a complaint in the California Superior Court, County of Los Angeles,
against the Company, as the renamed Fremont, and unnamed defendants for breach of contract, certain California
Labor Code violations and breach of fiduciary duty related the MCA. Ms. Colburn claims she is owed at least $3.15
million for severance, the value of 131,185 shares of restricted stock at the time of her termination and the value of 36
months of welfare benefits. On August 26, 2011, Ms. Colburn dismissed this complaint, without prejudice.
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Ms. Colburn’s Proof of Claim for $2.6 million in the Fremont Bankruptcy Proceeding for severance, bonus, welfare
benefits and restricted stock remains outstanding and the Company intends to vigorously defend against this claim.

Walker Matters. On June 10, 2011, Kyle Walker, the former Chief Executive Officer and President of FIL, filed a
complaint in the California Superior Court, County of Los Angeles, against the Company and unnamed defendants for
breach of contract, certain California Labor Code violations and breach of fiduciary duty related to his MCA executed
in August 2003, and extended in August 2006. Mr. Walker claims he is owed at least $3.5 million for severance, the
value of 131,185 shares of restricted stock at the time of his termination and the value of 36 months of welfare
benefits. On August 26, 2011, Mr. Walker dismissed this complaint, without prejudice, against the Company as
successor in interest to Fremont, but not a successor in interest to FIL. Trial has been set to commence on September
11, 2012.  The Company intends to vigorously defend against this lawsuit.

Mr. Walker’s Proof of Claim for $2.6 million in the Fremont Bankruptcy Proceeding for severance, bonus, welfare
benefits and restricted stock remains outstanding. The Company intends to vigorously defend against this claim.

National Credit Union Administration v. Goldman Sachs, et al. (NCUA II). On August 9, 2011, NCUA, acting as
liquidator of U.S. Central, filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Court in California for unspecified damages to be proven
at trial against the underwriter, issuers and depositors of 21 RMBS offerings purchased by U.S. Central. NCUA
alleges that the defendants violated federal and state securities laws through untrue statements and material omissions
in the RMBS offering documents. The lawsuit alleges that U.S. Central invested a total of $1.2 billion in these RMBS
offerings. The complaint names FMSC, as a depositor of $50 million in two RMBS offerings in 2006. These
allegations against FMSC are identical to those in NCUA I. On November 23, 2011, the U.S. District Court in
California entered an order extending the time for the defendants to respond to the complaint.  The Company’s
response to this complaint is due by January 9, 2012.  A hearing on the Company’s responsive pleadings is set for
March 15, 2012. FMSC intends to defend itself vigorously in this matter.

Kingstown/McIntyre Matters. On July 15, 2011 and July 18, 2011, James McIntyre, Kingstown Partners Master Ltd.
and other entities affiliated therewith, Michael Blitzer, J. Hunter Brown, Robert A. Peiser, Laurie M. Shahon, Joyce
White, Robert Willens and Guy Shanon (collectively, the “Shareholder Group”) filed Schedule 13D's indicating that
such persons and entities had formed a “group” (as defined by Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act) in connection with
the Shareholder Group's intention to nominate a slate of directors for election to the Company's Board of Directors
(the “Board”) at the Company's next annual meeting of shareholders.

As a result of the formation of the Shareholder Group, the Board continues to evaluate whether the Shareholder Group
should be determined to be an “Acquiring Person” (as defined in that certain Rights Agreement, dated as of October 23,
2007, as amended (the “Rights Agreement”), between the Company and Mellon Investor Services LLC (the “Rights
Agent”)) and if such determination is made, whether a Distribution Date (as defined in the Rights Agreement) for the
distribution of rights under and pursuant to the Rights Agreement will occur. The Company previously announced that
the Board had extended the date by which such determinations needed to be made until December 2, 2011.  On
November 28, 2011, the Board further extended the date to make such determinations to January 31, 2012.

On August 12, 2011, James McIntyre, Kingstown Partners Master Ltd. and other entities affiliated therewith
(collectively, the “Plaintiffs”) filed a complaint, as amended (the “Complaint”), with the Second Judicial District Court of
the State of Nevada in and for the County of Washoe (the “State Court”) against the Company seeking (i) a declaration
that the Rights Agreement has no force and effect, (ii) a declaration that the Plaintiffs are not an Acquiring Person,
and (iii) an injunction against the Board from implementing the Rights Agreement (the “Proceeding”). In the Complaint,
the Plaintiffs claimed that the Rights Agreement was rejected in connection with the Company's bankruptcy
proceeding, which concluded in June 2010, or if the Rights Agreement is determined to not to have been rejected, that
the Shareholder Group is not an Acquiring Person and, therefore, the condition for implementing the Rights
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Agreement cannot be satisfied.

On August 31, 2011, the Company filed a Notice of Removal of Pending State Court Action to remove the Proceeding
to the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the District of Nevada (the “Nevada Federal Bankruptcy Court”). As a result, the
Proceeding was removed to the Nevada Federal Bankruptcy Court.  The Company removed the Proceeding because,
among other reasons, a central issue in the Proceeding is whether the Rights Agreement was assumed, and otherwise
remained in full force and effect, under the Plan, which was confirmed by the United States Bankruptcy Court for the
Central District of California (the “California Federal Bankruptcy Court”) by order dated June 9, 2010 (the “Confirmation
Order”).
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Because the Proceeding involves issues central to the Confirmation Order, the Company also separately filed a motion
(the “Motion”) with the California Federal Bankruptcy Court on September 19, 2011 seeking an order confirming that
the Rights Agreement was assumed under the Plan and granting related relief.

On September 26, 2011, the Company filed a motion to move for the transfer of venue of the Proceeding from the
Nevada Federal Bankruptcy Court to the California Federal Bankruptcy Court (the “Transfer Motion”) since the
California Federal Bankruptcy Court retained jurisdiction on matters relating to the Plan covered by the Confirmation
Order. On November 9, 2011, the Nevada Federal Bankruptcy Court entered an order granting the Transfer Motion.

On November 29, 2011, the California Federal Bankruptcy Court ruled at a hearing on the Motion that the Rights
Agreement was assumed under the Plan and remains in full force and effect following the Confirmation Order and the
Company's emergence from bankruptcy proceedings.

On December 7, 2011, Mr. McIntyre filed an amendment to his Schedule 13D to report the termination of his
agreement with the Shareholder Group to (i) solicit proxies or written consents for the election of persons nominated
by the Shareholder Group to the Board at the next annual meeting of shareholders and (ii) serve as a nominee on the
Shareholder Group's proposed slate of directors for election to the Board.  On the same day, the Plaintiffs filed a
Notice of Dismissal with the California Federal Bankruptcy Court dismissing the Proceeding.

On December 9, 2011, the California Federal Bankruptcy Court entered its order on the aforementioned ruling
granting the Motion (the “Rights Agreement Order”).

On December 21, 2011, (i) Kingstown Partners Master Ltd., Kingstown Partners II L.P. and KTown LP, and (ii) Mr.
McIntyre each separately filed Notices of Appeal with the California Federal Bankruptcy Court from the Rights
Agreement Order.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There were no material changes to the risk factors as previously disclosed under Part I, Item 1A. of the Annual Report
and the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Reserved

Item 5. Other Information

None.
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Item 6. Exhibits

(a)(3) and (b) Exhibits.

Exhibit
No.

Description

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated July 29, 2011, among Signature Group Holdings, Inc., North American
Breaker Company, Inc. and the shareholders of North American Breaker Company, Inc. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 1, 2011)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Signature Group Holdings, Inc. dated August 1, 2011 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 3, 2011)

4.1 First Amendment, dated as of July 28, 2011, to the Rights Agreement, dated as of October 23, 2007,
between Signature Group Holdings, Inc. and Mellon Investor Services LLC (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 3, 2011)

10.1 Employment Agreement, dated as of August 2, 2011, by and between Craig Noell and Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form
8-K/A filed on August 4, 2011)

10.2 Employment Agreement, dated as of August 2, 2011, by and between Kenneth Grossman and Signature
Group Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on
Form 8-K/A filed on August 4, 2011)

10.3 Employment Agreement, dated as of August 2, 2011, by and between Kyle Ross and Signature Group
Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form
8-K/A filed on August 4, 2011)

10.4 Employment Agreement, dated as of August 2, 2011, by and between Thomas Donatelli and Signature
Group Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on
Form 8-K/A filed on August 4, 2011)

10.5 Business Loan Agreement, dated September 29, 2011, among North American Breaker Co., Inc. and
Pacific Western Bank (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on October 5, 2011)

10.6 Business Loan Agreement (Asset Based), dated September 29, 2011, among North American Breaker Co.,
Inc. and Pacific Western Bank (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on October 5, 2011)

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

101.INS Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SIGNATURE GROUP HOLDINGS, INC.

Dated: December 29, 2011 By: /s/ Craig Noell
Craig Noell
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: December 29, 2011 By: /s/ Kyle Ross
Kyle Ross
Executive Vice President
Interim Chief Financial Officer and Assistant
Secretary
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)
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